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Letter to the Minister 

Hon Albert Jacob, MLA 
 

Minister for Environment 
 

In accordance with s63 of the Financial Management Act 2006, I submit for presentation to 
Parliament the Annual Report of the Office of the Environmental Protection Authority for the 
year ended 30 June 2014. 

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006. 

 
 

Kim Taylor 

General Manager 

19 September 2014 
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General Manager’s foreword 
The Office of the Environmental Protection 
Authority’s functions contribute to 
achievement of the Government’s goal of 
‘ensuring that economic activity is managed 
in a socially and environmentally responsible 
manner for the long term benefit of the 
State’. A key part of its functions is to 
support the Environmental Protection 
Authority in developing environmental 
policies and strategic advice and 
undertaking environmental impact 
assessment of development proposals and 
planning schemes and amendments. 

During the year, the OEPA worked closely 
with the EPA and other State agencies to 
address State and Commonwealth environmental issues through the Strategic 
Environmental Assessment of the Perth-Peel region in order to manage the 
potential impacts of a city of 3.5 million people.  

Recognising the importance of a contemporary, clear and consistent framework 
of policy and guidelines to support environmental impact assessment and 
environmental protection in general, the OEPA prepared, for the EPA, key 
guidance on scoping a proposal, recommending environmental conditions, and 
the EPA’s role in mine closure planning. Guidance has also been published on 
the protection of naturally vegetated areas in urban and peri-urban settings. 

The OEPA also contributed to whole of Government initiatives including the 
development of State offset guidelines, the establishment of a public, online 
offset register, and the expansion of bilateral assessment and approval 
arrangements with the Commonwealth Government. 

Thirty-five environmental impact assessment reports were prepared for the EPA 
and published in 2013–14, covering a diverse range of proposals including iron 
ore, gold, lead, silver and zinc mining, waste to energy facilities, port expansions, 
roads and urban developments. While the number of the EPA’s report releases 
is broadly consistent with previous years, there is a noticeable trend of 
proponents taking more time to complete their environmental review documents 
and review conditions associated with new and existing proposals.  

There were 235 statutory planning schemes and amendments referred to the 
EPA in 2013–14, representing a slight decrease on the previous year. 

The OEPA completed a substantial amount of post-approval work in the year, 
assessing 39 requests for changes to proposals and approving 76 environmental 
management plans. In instances where a proponent has multiple implementation 
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statements issued over many years, the OEPA has worked with proponents to 
contemporise and rationalise conditions. This reduces duplication and 
inefficiency, not only for the proponent but also for the OEPA as the regulator 
and results in more robust and clear conditions on proposals.  

During the year, the OEPA completed 60 compliance audits, with a particular 
focus on the oil and gas industry. It was reassuring that there was a high degree 
of compliance found across all facets of the audit program. 

Business improvements continued in 2013–14, with significant progress made on 
the development of a case management system and in the embedding of 
electronic records management. This foundational work will ensure the OEPA is 
well placed for future service delivery improvements. 

In 2013–14, the OEPA developed and trialled new performance indicators to 
establish a more contemporary, robust and transparent set of indicators for 
public and Parliamentary scrutiny. The indicators have been endorsed to 
commence in the 2014–15 financial year and represent another milestone in the 
maturing of a department that was established in late 2009. 

The OEPA has devoted considerable effort this year in developing stronger 
relationships with key departments with which it works. As a small department, 
the OEPA draws on the technical assistance, advice and expertise of people in a 
range of public sector entities. This close collaboration is critical to the effective 
performance of the OEPA and to the provision of high quality service to the EPA, 
and it is greatly appreciated. 

The OEPA has professional working relationships with a range of industry peak 
bodies and environmental non-government organisations and these too are 
important to our efforts to continuously improve our services. 

I would also like to acknowledge the continuing collaborative working relationship 
with the Chairman and Members of the EPA. 

Kim Taylor  
General Manager 
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Our vision 

An environment that is 
highly valued and 
protected 

Our purpose  

We support the EPA and 
work with other 
departments, industry and 
the community to ensure 
environmental values are 
protected and 
development is managed 
in an environmentally 
responsible manner 
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Overview 

Executive summary 

In this annual report the Office of the Environmental Protection Authority (OEPA) 
outlines its achievements during 2013–14. 

Environmental impact assessments 

Major project assessments completed during the year and discussed in more 
detail under Agency Performance include the: 

• Roe Highway extension; 
• Red Hill resource recovery facility; 
• Bunbury Port Berth expansion and coal storage and loading facility; 
• Newmont Boddington Gold life of mine extension; and 
• Sorby Hills silver lead zinc project. 

Environmental management  

The OEPA supported the Environmental Protection Authority (EPA) in its 
development and production of policy, guidelines and strategic advice on key 
issues including: 

• a draft Revised Cockburn Sound State Environmental Policy, for consultation; 
• the scoping of proposals subject to environmental impact assessment; 
• the approach to setting environmental conditions; 
• the cumulative environmental impacts of development in the Pilbara; 
• roles and responsibilities for mine closure and rehabilitation;  
• the protection of native vegetation in urban areas; and 
• wind farm developments. 

The OEPA has also actively participated in the Strategic Assessment of the 
Perth-Peel region; the negotiation of bilateral assessment and approval 
arrangements with the Commonwealth Government; and the development of 
State environmental offset guidelines. 

Compliance monitoring 

Effective monitoring of high profile proposals enabling timely responses to 
proponents and government on emergent issues, including: 

• Chevron Gorgon Project; 
• Chevron Wheatstone Project; and 
• Rosslyn Hill (Magellan Metals) Lead Carbonate Project. 
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Our role 

The OEPA was established in 2009 to service the EPA in undertaking its 
statutory functions, in accordance with s17A and s22(1) of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1986 (EP Act). 

The OEPA provides the EPA with support for environmental impact assessment 
(EIA) and development of environmental policy and strategic advice. 

This support helps the EPA provide the Minister for Environment with EIA reports 
and recommendations on development proposals and planning schemes, and 
with advice on environmental policy and environmental issues generally. 

In line with s22(1), the OEPA is responsible for directly servicing the Minister in 
performance of his functions under the EP Act, particularly for granting and 
managing Ministerial approval statements for projects under Divisions 2 and 3 of 
Part IV of the EP Act. 

The OEPA is also responsible for administering s48 of the EP Act in monitoring 
compliance of projects with Ministerial conditions and reporting on this 
compliance to the Minister. 

During the reporting year, the OEPA provided its services to the Honourable 
Albert Jacob MLA. 

 
Subsidiary legislation 

Subsidiary legislation relevant to the OEPA’s functions includes: 

• Environmental Protection Regulations 1987 
• Environmental Protection (Swan Coastal Plain Lakes) Policy 1992 
• Environmental Protection (Gnangara Mound Crown Land) Policy 1992 
• Environmental Protection (Peel Inlet – Harvey Estuary) Policy 1992 
• Environmental Protection (Kwinana) (Atmospheric Wastes) Policy 1999 
• Environmental Protection (Kwinana) (Atmospheric Wastes) Regulations 1992 
• Environmental Protection (Goldfields Residential Areas) (Sulphur Dioxide) 

Policy 2003 
• Environmental Protection (Goldfields Residential Areas) (Sulphur Dioxide) 

Regulations 2003 
• Environmental Protection (South West Agricultural Zone Wetlands) Policy 

1998 
• Environmental Protection (Western Swamp Tortoise Habitat) Policy 2011 

It should be noted that other parts of the EP Act are administered by the 
Department of Environment Regulation. 
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Organisation structure 

The OEPA has three divisions: 

Assessment and Compliance Division 

The Assessment and Compliance Division provides environmental impact 
assessment support to the EPA for significant proposals (that is, proposals 
involving major projects, industrial, mining, petroleum and infrastructure 
developments) and strategic proposals. The division also monitors compliance 
with Ministerial approval conditions. 

The division: 

• is responsible for administering the environmental impact assessment 
processes on behalf of the EPA, for significant proposals and strategic 
proposals; 

• provides environmental impact assessment advice to the EPA on all major 
infrastructure proposals; 

• prepares draft EPA reports and recommendations to the Minister for 
Environment on environmental assessments; 

• assists the Minister for Environment in issuing and managing Ministerial 
approval statements and conditions of implementation; and 

• monitors the implementation of proposals. 

Strategic Policy and Planning Division 

The Strategic Policy and Planning Division’s role is to provide advice and support 
to the EPA, the Minister for Environment and other parts of Government by: 

• providing technical and policy advice in relation to environmental impact 
assessment of significant proposals and schemes; 

• providing technical and policy advice on environment issues in general; 
• coordinating the development, analysis, implementation and review of 

environmental policies and guidelines; 
• managing the formulation and review of statutory Environmental Protection 

Policies; 
• contributing to strategic environmental planning; 
• providing environmental impact assessment advice to the EPA on major 

subdivisions, town planning schemes and amendments and regional 
schemes; 

• developing strategic partnerships with stakeholders, including industry, 
environmental organisations and other Federal, State and local Government 
agencies; 
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• conducting investigations to improve understanding of the natural 
environment and inform successful policy approaches; 

• providing media liaison and internal and external communications services; 
and 

• identifying emerging environmental pressures and innovative technical or 
policy solutions. 

Business Operations Division 

During 2013–14, the Business Operations Division provided services including 
ministerial liaison, legal advice and Freedom of Information (FOI) and financial 
management, as well as executive support and administrative services to the 
EPA. This division also facilitated and administered the service agreements with 
the Department of Parks and Wildlife and the Department of Environment 
Regulation during the year. 

 
  

Minister for Environment 
HON ALBERT JACOB MLA 

Environmental Protection 
Authority 
CHAIRMAN DR PAUL VOGEL 

OEPA General Manager 
KIM TAYLOR 

Assessment and 
Compliance 

Anthony Sutton 

Mining and 
Industrial 

Assessments North 

Mining and 
Industrial 

Assessments South 

Infrastructure 
Assessments  

Compliance  

Strategic Policy 
and Planning 
Darren Foster 

Strategic Policy 

Terrestrial 
Ecosystems 

Marine Ecosystems 

Environmental 
Planning 

Business 
Operations 

Steve Beilby 

Business Processes 

Information 
Management 

Executive and 
Administrative 

Support to the EPA 
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Performance management framework 
 

The OEPA’s management framework is consistent with the Government goal for 
social and environmental responsibility, which is to ensure that economic activity 
is managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the long-
term benefit of the State. 

The desired outcome is an efficient and effective environmental assessment and 
compliance system. 

To achieve this outcome, the OEPA performs two services: 

1. Environmental Impact Assessment and Policies 

2. Environmental Compliance Audits 

To deliver these services, the OEPA undertakes three key functions: 

Environmental impact assessment is undertaken to ensure the environmental 
impacts of development proposals and planning schemes are properly assessed 
and that appropriate conditions are applied. 

Environmental management policies and strategic advice contribute to EPA 
and Government environmental policy so that environmental values are 
protected. 

Compliance and enforcement is undertaken to ensure projects and planning 
schemes comply with Ministerial approval conditions. Audits monitor compliance 
and the Minister is advised of any non-compliance. 

Resource agreement 

Each year the OEPA is required to meet a number of targets set by the State 
Government. These targets relate to Government-desired outcomes, financial 
management, services to be delivered and performance targets to be achieved. 
The agreement is a transparent way for the State Government to monitor the 
operational performance of the OEPA. 

The OEPA evaluates, measures and reports on the effectiveness of its services 
in achieving its desired agency level outcomes through Key Performance 
Indicators or ‘KPIs’. KPIs comprise both Effectiveness and Efficiency Indicators. 

Effectiveness Indicators show the extent to which the department achieved its 
department-level outcome and the Efficiency Indicators show the cost of services 
delivered by the department, as summarised in the tables opposite. 
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In order for the OEPA’s performance management framework to be more 
comprehensive and informative to stakeholders, a review was completed and 
new KPIs developed and approved during 2013–14. These will apply from 2014–
15 and are outlined in more detail under Agency performance in this report. 

Performance analysis and trends 

Financial targets 

 
2013-14 

TARGET1 
2013-14 
ACTUAL 

VARIATION2 
$000 

 
$000 $000  

Total cost of services (expense limit) 
(sourced from Statement of 
Comprehensive Income) 

15,272 16,043 (771) 

Net cost of services 
(sourced from Statement of 
Comprehensive Income) 

10,672 15,955 (5,283) 

Total equity 
(sourced from Statement of Financial 
Position) 

684 (1,827) (2,511) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash held (50) (544) (494) 

Approved fulltime equivalence (FTE) staff 
level 

104 95 (9) 

Key performance indicators 

 
2013-14 

TARGET1 
2013-14 
ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
 

Key effectiveness indicators 

Outcome: An efficient and effective environmental assessment and compliance 
system 

Percentage of approved projects with 
actual impacts not exceeding those 
predicted during the assessment 

100% 100% 0% 

Percentage of assessments that meet 
agreed initial timelines 

80% 88% 8% 

Percentage of audited projects where all 
environmental conditions have been met 

80% 87% 7% 
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2013-14 

TARGET1 
2013-14 
ACTUAL 

VARIANCE 
 

Key efficiency indicators 

Service 1: Environmental Impact and Assessment Policies 

Average cost per environmental 
assessment 

$42,200 $49,227 $7,027 

Average cost per environmental policy 
developed 

$114,287 $125,581 $11,294 

Service 2: Environmental Compliance Audits t 

Average cost per environmental audit 
completed 

$36,705 $32,198 ($4,507) 

1. As specified in the budget statements. 

2. Further explanations are contained in Note 27 ‘Explanatory statement’ to the financial 
statements. 
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Agency performance 

Our work 

Environmental impact assessment and policies 

Manage the environmental impact assessment process and coordinate the development of 
policy for the Environmental Protection Authority to enable sound environmental advice to 
be provided to the Government, developers and the public in accordance with statutory 
functions. 

 

 

2013 
ACTUAL 

$ 

2014 
ESTIMATE 

$ 

2014 
ACTUAL 

$ 

VARIANCE 
$ 
 

Total cost of service 15,520,313 13,070,000 14,111,305 (1,041,305) 

 

2012-13 
ACTUAL 

$ 

2013-14 
TARGET 

$ 

2013-14 
ACTUAL 

$ 

2013-14 
VARIANCE OF 
TARGET TO 
ACTUAL$ 

 

Efficiency indicators     

Average cost per environmental 
assessment 

49,327 42,200 49,227 7,027 

Average cost per environmental 
policy developed 

129,410 114,287 125,581 1,294 

 

A key role of the OEPA is to manage the environmental impact assessment 
process for the EPA to enable sound environmental advice to be provided on the 
environmental impacts of proposed developments and to report to the Minister 
for Environment. A total of 314 development proposals and planning schemes 
were referred to the EPA for consideration in 2013–14: a decrease of 
approximately 5.7 % in comparison to 2012–13. 

Of these, the EPA determined that 18 referred proposals warranted formal 
assessment. A further 64 referrals did not require assessment but specific advice 
was provided to proponents and approval agencies, primarily in relation to 
planning schemes. 
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In setting the level of assessment and carrying out environmental impact 
assessments the EPA is guided by the Environmental Impact Assessment (Part 
IV Divisions 1 and 2) Administrative Procedures 2012. 

Under these administrative procedures, the EPA completed 35 reports, with the 
type and number of assessments for 2013–14 shown in Table 1. In addition, the 
EPA completed one assessment under noise regulation 17. A list of all proposals 
assessed is shown in Appendix 1. Some of the more significant assessments are 
discussed in this section. 

 
Table 1: Completed assessments 

TYPE OF ASSESSMENT 2012-13 2013-14 

Public Environmental Review  13 9 

Assessment on Proponent Information – 
Category A 

12 8 

Assessment on Proponent Information – 
Category B 

1 - 

Changes to Conditions – Section 46 13 16 

Derived proposal – Section 46(6) - 1 

Planning – Section 48A - 1 

TOTAL 39 35* 

*Includes EPA Reports 1519 and 1520 which were completed and transmitted to the  
Minister for Environment in June 2014, but released publicly on 4 July 2014. 
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Additional performance information 

Assessments 

Development proposals 

The number of development proposals referred to the EPA under s38(1) of the 
EP Act increased slightly during 2013–14 compared to 2012–13. There was a 
small decrease in the number of development proposals requiring formal 
environmental impact assessment. 

Figure 1: Referrals of development proposals under section 38(1) received, and the levels of 
assessment set 

Statutory planning schemes and amendments 

The number of statutory planning schemes and amendments referred to the EPA 
under section 48(1) of the EPA continued to decline during 2013–14 due to the 
economic climate. As for the previous four years, no statutory planning schemes 
or amendments were determined to require formal assessment. 

Figure 2: Referrals of statutory planning schemes and amendments under section 48(1) received, 
and the levels of assessment set   
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Assessments under Public Environmental Review (PER) and 
Environmental Review and Management Programme (ERMP) levels of 
assessment 

Figure 3: Status, at 30 June 2014, of assessments of development proposals under the PER 
and ERMP levels of assessment 

Nine PER assessments were completed during the year. At 30 June 2014, 37 
assessments were not yet complete, of which: 

• six were at a stage requiring the EPA’s completion (preparation of either the 
Environmental Scoping Document (ESD) or the assessment report); 

• 26 were at a stage requiring the proponent’s completion (preparation of either 
the ESD, the Environmental Review Document or the final Response to 
Submissions); and 

• five were inactive. 

Assessments under Assessment on Proponent Information (API) 
level of assessment 

 
Figure 4: Status, at 30 June 2014, of assessments of development proposals under the API 
level of assessment 
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Eight API (A) assessments were completed during the year and, at 30 June 
2014, six assessments were not yet complete, of which: 

• one was at a stage requiring the EPA’s completion, being the preparation of 
either the Scoping Guideline or the assessment report;  

• four were at a stage requiring the proponent’s completion, being the 
preparation of the API document; and 

• one was inactive. 

Condition setting 

How well the EPA’s recommended conditions fare in the appeal process 
provides some indication of the effectiveness of the OEPA’s efforts to continually 
improve recommended conditions. 

There were 18 (2012–13: 24) assessments whose appeal period closed during 
the year. Eleven (62%) of those assessments were appealed. (2012–13: 25%) 

• Seven required no or only minor changes to their conditions (2012–13: 1); 
• None required significant changes to conditions (2012–13: 2); and 
• Four had not received an appeal determination by 30 June 2013. 

While a comparatively high proportion of assessments were the subject of 
appeal, there were no significant changes to the EPA’s recommended conditions 
as a result. 

Some more recently-completed assessments were still in the appeal process at 
30 June 2014. 

Explanatory notes: 

Whether a change to a condition is a significant change is determined on a case-
by-case basis but will generally involve one of the following: 

• a substantial change to the form of a condition; 
• the deletion of a condition or addition of a new condition; 
• a change to the outcome or objective specified in a condition; 
• a substantial change to the specified requirements of an environmental 

management plan or environmental monitoring plan; or 
• a change to a prescribed action to be taken. 
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Mining and industrial assessments – case studies 

North Star Magnetite Project 

The proposal, by Fortescue Metals 
Iron Bridge (Aus) Pty Ltd (a joint 
venture with Baosteel Group 
Corporation) is to construct and 
operate an open-cut iron ore mine 
and associated infrastructure, 
including a borefield and water 
supply pipeline, approximately 
110 km south-south-east of Port 
Hedland. The proposal has a mine 
life of 45 years and will generate up 
to 15 million tonnes of product each 
year. It will result in the clearing of 
5,100 ha of native vegetation. Due to 
the scale of the proposal and the fact 
that it had several complex key 
environmental factors, it was 
assessed as a Public Environmental 
Review (PER). 

The proposal is also being assessed 
under the Bilateral Agreement 
between the State and 
Commonwealth Governments due to the 
presence of Threatened Fauna listed under the Environment Protection 
Biodiversity Act 1999 (EPBC Act). The bilateral agreement allows the State 
Government of WA to use the PER process to assess this proposal under the 
EPBC Act on behalf of the Commonwealth Minister for Environment. The 
assessment report on the proposed action prepared by the EPA, and provided to 
the WA Minister for Environment, is forwarded to the Commonwealth Minister for 
Environment. The Commonwealth Minister for Environment then makes a 
decision as to whether or not the proposal should be approved under the EPBC 
Act. This is separate from any State approval that may be required.  

Key environmental factors evaluated were flora and vegetation, terrestrial fauna, 
subterranean fauna, hydrological processes and inland waters environmental 
quality, and offsets (integrating factor).  

The EPA’s assessment identified the impacts to threatened fauna, specifically 
the Pilbara Leaf-nosed Bat, and the disturbance to a Priority 1 flora species, 

Location of mining and industrial 
assessments during 2013-14 
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Pityrodia sp. Marble Bar, a type of native foxglove, as the key issues relating to 
the proposal.  

The presence of the Pilbara Leaf-nosed Bat within the Mine Development 
Envelope was a key concern of the EPA. The proponent identified a large colony 
of approximately 200–250 individuals in a maternal roost cave that would be 
removed as a result of the proposal.  

Through its assessment, the EPA concluded that the roost cave and bat colony 
were significant to the viability and on-going presence of the Pilbara Leaf-nosed 
Bat in the Eastern Pilbara region. The EPA has recommended that a Mine 
Exclusion Zone surrounding the lateral extent of the cave be established to 
ensure the protection of the roost site and colony.  

Pilbara Leaf-nosed Bats actively search for new roost habitat in an attempt to 
extend their foraging range, evidenced by the number of disused historic mine 
shafts supporting large Pilbara Leaf-nosed Bat colonies. Taking this into account, 
the EPA has recommended that the proponent be given the opportunity to 
demonstrate that a viable portion of the Pilbara Leaf-nosed Bat population has 
relocated and established itself within an alternative roost site (either artificial or 
man-made). Once this has been demonstrated the Minister for Environment 
would remove the Mine Exclusion Zone and permit mining within this area.  

During the assessment of the proposal, it became apparent that over one quarter 
(27%) of the known extent of the Priority 1 flora species Pityrodia sp. Marble Bar 
occurs within the proposal development envelopes and could potentially be 
impacted. Through its assessment, the EPA formed the view that the proposal’s 
water pipeline could be designed to avoid a large cluster of the species within the 
Water Corridor Development Envelope, effectively minimising the impact to eight 
per cent of the known population. The EPA has recommended that the 
proponent conduct a regional survey for Pityrodia sp. Marble Bar to inform a 
review of its conservation status. If the species is declared as Rare Flora by the 
Minister for Environment, the proponent will be required to undertake 
conservation actions such as seed collection and translocation trials. 

The EPA found that the proposal would have a significant residual impact on 
‘good to excellent’ quality vegetation within the Chichester IBRA subregion and 
has recommended a condition requiring the proponent to offset these significant 
residual impacts within this IBRA subregion. 

The EPA concluded that the proposal can be implemented subject to conditions 
detailed in the EPA’s report, including conditions to maintain the viability of the 
Pilbara Leaf-nosed Bat and Pityrodia sp. Marble Bar within the Pilbara region.  

EPA Report 1514 North Star Magnetite Project was released in June 2014. 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1514-NorthStarMagnetiteProject.aspx
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Sorby Hills Silver Lead Zinc Mine 

The Sorby Hills Mine proposal is to construct and operate a silver, lead and zinc 
mine, infrastructure and processing facilities approximately 50 km north of 
Kununurra in the Kimberley Region, with the concentrate produced transported 
by road and shipped through Wyndham Port. The proposal, by Sorby 
Management Pty Ltd, requires the direct disturbance of 573 ha of native 
vegetation within a 1,045 ha project development envelope.  

The key environmental factors identified were flora and vegetation, human 
health, marine environmental quality, and rehabilitation and closure, and the 
proposal was assessed as a PER. 

The EPA’s assessment identified the need to ensure that concentrate 
transported to Wyndham was secure. The EPA considered that the proponent’s 
use of sealed ‘rotabox’ containers was appropriate and noted that storage and 
transport would be regulated under the Dangerous Goods Safety Act 2004.  

The EPA was concerned with the initial inclusion of an artificial wetland as part of 
the proposal because of the difficulty in managing water quality and the potential 
impact on birds if water quality deteriorated.  

The proponent accordingly modified the proposal to replace the artificial wetland 
with an evaporation basin. This resulted in an increase in clearing from 480 ha to 
573 ha, however the overall benefit to environmental values outweighed this 
increase in clearing. 

During the assessment the EPA noted that the proponent intends to use all 
waste material not used in project construction as backfill for the pit voids, to 
minimise the number of pit lakes. The one remaining void will contain a pit lake. 
There is potential for acid generation to impact the lake, however there is 
sufficient buffering material that can be used to manage this during the closure 
phase. The Department of Mines and Petroleum (DMP) would regulate and 
manage the closure of the mine under the provisions of the Mining Act 1978 and 
consistent with the DMP/EPA Guidelines for preparing Mine Closure Plans. This 
would include the rehabilitation of infrastructure such as the tailings storage 
facilities, the evaporation basin, processing facilities and the pit void. 

The EPA concluded that the proposal could meet its objectives if the 
recommended conditions regarding the monitoring of groundwater-dependent 
vegetation and the handling, storage and transport of concentrate were 
implemented, including the preparation of a Wyndham Port Heavy Metals Survey 
and a Heavy Metals Monitoring Plan.  

EPA Report 1491 Sorby Hills Silver Lead Zinc Project was published in October 
2013. 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1491-SorbyHillsSilverLeadZincProject.aspxhttp:/www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1491-SorbyHillsSilverLeadZincProject.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1491-SorbyHillsSilverLeadZincProject.aspxhttp:/www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1491-SorbyHillsSilverLeadZincProject.aspx
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Implementation of the proposal was approved under Ministerial Statement 964 in 
April 2014. 

Newmont Boddington Gold Life of Mine Expansion Project 

Newmont Boddington Gold Pty Ltd’s proposal is to expand their existing 
Boddington operations and extend the life of the mine.  

Mining at the Boddington site began in 1987 and the current Ministerial approval 
allows for mining up to 2022. The revised proposal would be developed on areas 
of native vegetation, farmland, timber plantation and other previously disturbed 
areas. Of these areas, 618 ha is forest with conservation values that is currently 
vested with the Conservation Commission of Western Australia. 

The EPA identified the key environmental factors as being flora and vegetation, 
hydrological processes, terrestrial fauna, amenity and offsets, and determined 
that the proposal should be assessed as a PER.   

The area has been the subject of mining activity and associated environmental 
monitoring and surveys by the proponent over more than 20 years. As a result, 
the proponent has extensive knowledge of the terrestrial fauna, flora and 
vegetation, discharges to the environment, groundwater and surface water, and 
rehabilitation, as well as good knowledge of the impacts of the existing 
operations.  

Impacts to flora and vegetation associated with the revised proposal would 
include clearing of up to 3,120 ha of vegetation, 1,755 ha of which would be 
native vegetation. When fully implemented, the existing and revised proposal 
would result in a total cleared area of native vegetation of no more than 
5,435 ha. The EPA recommended conditions to ensure weed and dieback 
management is carried out appropriately. 

The EPA considered that significant impacts to groundwater-dependent 
ecosystems (GDEs) were unlikely based on the existing knowledge of the 
regional hydrology and the proponent’s proposed management of groundwater. 
The EPA recommended that the existing commitment of the proponent to 
monitor and manage GDEs in the area becomes a condition of approval.  

The potential impacts to hydrological processes associated with both the current 
and proposed operations would continue to be adequately managed by other 
regulatory processes.   

The potential impacts on amenity relate to the potential loss of recreational 
values of the Bibbulmun Track, a nationally significant recreational track 
managed by the Department of Parks and Wildlife (Parks and Wildlife), due to 
construction and operation of waste rock dump (WRD) No. 12. The creation of 
WRD No. 12 would require diversion of approximately two kilometres of the 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/Statement%20No.%20964.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/Statement%20No.%20964.pdf
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Track, while its construction and operation has potential noise impacts on the Mt 
Wells Hut.  

In order that operation of the Bibbulmun Track continues without any loss of 
recreational values, the EPA recommended a condition requiring the proponent 
to prepare a management plan and achieve agreement with Parks and Wildlife 
regarding the realignment route, management actions and costs associated with 
relocating the track before beginning construction of the WRD. The condition 
also addresses the establishment of appropriate criteria to determine the 
acceptability of noise impacts at the Mount Wells Hut. 

Conservation significant fauna species with the potential to be impacted by the 
proposal include the Brush-tailed Phascogale, Woylie, Chuditch, Baudin’s Black 
Cockatoo, Carnaby’s Black Cockatoo; and Forest Red-tailed Black Cockatoo. 

The proponent has attempted to avoid, minimise and mitigate the impacts of the 
proposal on fauna through:  

• locating the residue storage area on a timber plantation and expanding WRD 
No. 10 onto existing cleared farm land (avoiding clearing of approximately 
1,200 ha of native vegetation); 

• avoiding clearing Black Cockatoo breeding trees; 
• maintaining connectivity between the eastern and western sides of the 

proposal through fauna access and egress structures across roads and 
pipelines (minimising the impacts of fragmentation on terrestrial fauna); and 

• rehabilitating the site progressively using hollow producing tree species (for 
Black Cockatoos) and Gastrolobium shrubs (for Woylies). 

The EPA considered that, following the implementation of all mitigation 
measures, the proposal would have significant residual impacts through the 
clearing of up to 1,755 ha of native vegetation which includes: 

• foraging habitat for Carnaby's Cockatoo, Forest Red-tailed Black Cockatoo 
and Baudin’s Black Cockatoo;  

• fragmentation of the habitat of Woylie and Chuditch; and 
• 618 ha of forest with conservation values currently vested in the Conservation 

Commission. 

The EPA therefore recommended a condition requiring the proponent to provide 
an agreed offset which addresses the significant residual impacts of the 
proposal. 

The EPA recommended that the revised proposal could be implemented subject 
to the location and maximum extent of the proposal being defined in the 
Ministerial Statement, and conditions being applied to minimise and limit residual 
environmental impacts and to provide the agreed offset. 
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EPA Report 1506 Newmont Boddington Gold Mine Life of Mine Expansion was 
published in April 2014. 

Implementation of the proposal was approved under Ministerial Statement 971 in 
June 2014. 

Resource Recovery Facility, Red Hill 

The Eastern Metropolitan Regional Council (EMRC) proposes to develop a 
resource recovery facility at the existing Red Hill Waste Management Facility in 
the Perth metropolitan area. The proposal is to implement one of either 
anaerobic digestion or gasification technology to process kerbside municipal 
solid waste. 

The assessment was completed after the EPA and the Waste Authority provided 
strategic advice to the Minister for Environment following their review of waste to 
energy operations around the world. The advice, released in April 2013 as 
Report 1468, reported on the technologies used, facility designs, emissions and 
regulatory frameworks. It concluded that modern waste-to-energy plants could 
operate within strict emission standards and with acceptable environmental and 
health impacts, when well designed and operated using best-practice 
technologies and processes.   

The strategic advice provides an important framework for considering waste to 
energy technology proposals. Individual proposals are however considered on 
their environmental merit. 

Red Hill began operation as a landfill in 1981 and has expanded to produce 
mulch and compost, and to become a transfer station for recyclable material. 
The proposed facility, located west of the existing waste site, would help divert 
waste from landfill. 

The EPA considered air quality and amenity (odour) to be key environmental 
factors for both the anaerobic digestion and gasification technologies proposed 
for the facility.   

The EPA concluded that it is likely its air quality and odour objectives would be 
met for both technologies provided the recommended conditions were 
satisfactorily implemented.  

The EPA recommended conditions requiring: 

• cumulative odour levels to be reduced; 
• independent peer review of the total odour control system; 
• air emissions from anaerobic digestion facility to be benchmarked against 

best practice; and 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1506-NBGMLifeofMineExpansion.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1506-NBGMLifeofMineExpansion.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/Statement%20No.%20971.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/Statement%20No.%20971.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/Policies_guidelines/strategicadvice/Pages/Environmentalandhealthperformanceofwastetoenergytechnologies.aspx?pageID=3070&url=EIA/EPAReportshttp://www.epa.wa.gov.au/Policies_guidelines/strategicadvice/Pages/Environmentalandhealthperformanceofwastetoenergytechnologies.aspx
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• the gasification technology to be consistent with the EPA and the Waste 
Authority’s strategic advice. 

Although the final technology option has not been chosen by the proponent the 
recommended conditions address reducing air emissions under either scenario. 

EPA Report 1487 Resource Recovery Facility, Red Hill was published in July 
2013. 

Subsequent to the reporting period, implementation of the proposal was 
approved under Ministerial Statement 976 in July 2014. 

Infrastructure assessments – case studies 

Bunbury Port Berth 14A 
Expansion and Coal Storage 
and Loading Facility 

The proposal, by Lanco Resources 
Australia, involves the development 
of a berth pocket and associated on-
shore coal storage and infrastructure 
within the Inner Harbour of the Port of 
Bunbury. The berth pocket will have 
a capacity to export 15 million tonnes 
of coal per annum. Construction of 
the berth pocket would involve 
dredging of up to 1.9 million cubic 
metres of sediments, including 
blasting/rock fracturing of up to 
20,000 cubic metres of basalt. 
Dredge material would be deposited 
in Commonwealth waters subject to 
the requirements of the 
Commonwealth’s Environment 
Protection (Sea Dumping) Act 1981. 

Key environmental factors evaluated 
were marine environmental quality, benthic communities and habitats, marine 
fauna, air quality (dust emissions) and amenity (noise). The proposal was 
assessed at the highest level – PER. 

The EPA considered the key issues relating to the proposal to be the potential 
impact to the marine environment, including the waters of Koombana Bay. 
Koombana Bay is extensively used by the community of Bunbury for recreation, 

Location of infrastructure assessments 
during 2013-14 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1487-RRF-RedHill.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1487-RRF-RedHill.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/peia/approvalstatements/Pages/0976–ResourceRecoveryFacility,RedHill.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/peia/approvalstatements/Pages/0976–ResourceRecoveryFacility,RedHill.aspx
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including swimming and boating, and supports a resident population of 
Bottlenose Dolphins. The local dolphin community contributes to the region’s 
tourism industry as dolphin interaction activities at the Dolphin Discovery Centre 
are a major attraction for the City of Bunbury. 

Through its assessment the EPA formed the view that the marine construction 
activities such as dredging and rock blasting, and the mobilisation of sediments, 
had the potential to impact the aesthetic values, marine fauna and water quality 
of Koombana Bay. 

The EPA concluded that the proponent would need to establish a monitoring and 
management program for water quality (including turbidity) within Koombana 
Bay. The results from the water quality monitoring would inform management 
actions, and would also be made available to inform the public of dredge plume 
characteristics and any water quality issues arising from construction activities.  

To further minimise impacts to marine fauna and social values within Koombana 
Bay, the EPA recommended restrictions on the timing of dredging and rock 
blasting activities to avoid periods of high recreational usage and dolphin calving. 
The EPA also recommended marine fauna exclusion zones be established and 
monitored when marine construction activities were being carried out. 

To confirm that there are no long-term effects on the abundance and distribution 
of the Bottlenose Dolphin in Koombana Bay, the EPA recommended the 
proponent implement a Dolphin Monitoring Plan. The plan includes post-
construction visual boat-based monitoring of Bottlenose Dolphins within 
Koombana Bay. 

During the assessment, the proponent modified the proposal in a number of 
areas, to allow it to meet the EPA’s objectives for several key environmental 
factors. Modifications included committing to dry-land piling and excavation 
rather than marine pile driving, wherever possible, to reduce underwater noise 
emissions on marine fauna. The proponent also committed to the construction of 
a single ship loading facility to minimise noise impacts on nearby residents. 

To control dust emissions, the proponent committed to implement best-practice 
technologies for the handling of coal, including storing coal in large enclosed 
sheds and transferring coal in enclosed conveyors.  

The EPA concluded that the proposal can be managed to meet the EPA’s 
objectives for the key environmental factors provided the recommended 
conditions are implemented. 

EPA Report 1486 Bunbury Port Berth 14A expansion and coal storage and 
loading facility was published in July 2013. 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1486-BunburyPortBerth14A.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1486-BunburyPortBerth14A.aspx
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Implementation of the proposal was approved under Ministerial Statement 972 in 
June 2014. 

Roe Highway Extension 

In September 2013 the EPA completed its assessment of the proposal by Main 
Roads WA to extend Roe Highway approximately five kilometres from its current 
terminus at the Kwinana Freeway in Jandakot to Stock Road in Coolbellup. The 
proposal involves the construction of a dual carriageway through a portion of 
Beeliar Regional Park and two bridges, at Roe Swamp and north of Bibra Lake. 

The EPA’s assessment of the proposal at the level of PER followed previous 
advice to the Minister for the Environment in 2003 on the key environmental 
values that would be affected if Roe Highway was to be extended (EPA Report 
1088). This advice concluded that any proposal for the construction of Roe 
Highway through Beeliar Regional Park would be extremely difficult to be made 
environmentally acceptable. However, the EPA accepted that through design 
and construction there is potential to manage and minimise environmental 
impacts to a certain extent. At the time this advice was given there were no 
specific design details on the alignment of the Roe Highway Extension, and there 
was an expectation that more detailed information would be provided regarding 
any future proposal to construct the highway. 

The EPA’s advice to the Minister for the Environment in 2003 provided Main 
Roads WA with a clear understanding of the regionally significant environmental 
values of the proposal area. According, through planning and design of the Roe 
Highway Extension proposal, the proponent was able to apply the mitigation 
hierarchy to avoid, minimise, mitigate and offset the significant residual impacts 
of the proposal to the key environmental factors: inland waters environmental 
quality, hydrological processes, flora and vegetation, terrestrial fauna, and 
amenity. 

Main Roads WA proposed management measures to minimise and limit residual 
environmental impacts in relation to the factors of inland waters environmental 
quality, hydrological processes and amenity. 

Key design measures included relocation of the original Bibra Drive interchange 
over Roe Swamp to cleared land, aligning the proposal along already disturbed 
areas, use of a minimum width median, and replacing embankments with 
retaining walls to minimise the extent of clearing. To minimise the impacts of 
fragmentation to Roe Swamp, the proponent has committed to building a 120 m-
long bridge over the area, using a ‘top-down’ construction method. 

However, significant residual impacts remained in relation to the EPA’s 
environmental factors of flora and vegetation, and terrestrial fauna. To 
counterbalance these residual impacts, Main Roads WA proposed a package of 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/peia/approvalstatements/Pages/0972–BunburyBerth14AExpansionProject.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/peia/approvalstatements/Pages/0972–BunburyBerth14AExpansionProject.aspx
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environmental offset measures which included land acquisition and wetland 
restoration components. The EPA considered that the proponent had 
satisfactorily counterbalanced the significant residual impacts through its offset 
measures. 

The EPA concluded that the proposal can be managed to meets its objectives for 
the key environmental factors and recommended strict conditions to limit and 
counterbalance the significant residual impacts.  

EPA Report 1489 Roe Highway Extension was published in September 2013. 

Keane Road Strategic Link 

In June 2014, following a rigorous and thorough environmental impact 
assessment, the EPA reported on the proposal by the City of Armadale to 
construct, operate and maintain a 1.5 km section of Keane Road between 
Anstey and Skeet roads, Forrestdale. 

The proposal is located within the unique Swan Coastal Plain Bioregion and 
would cut through Bush Forever Site 342. This site meets all six of the EPA’s 
criteria for the identification of regionally significant natural areas, contains one of 
the largest remaining areas of damplands of high conservation value on the 
Swan Coastal Plain, and is the largest consolidated area of Southern River 
vegetation complex (a poorly represented vegetation complex) in the Perth 
Metropolitan Region, in predominately very good to excellent condition. The 
proposal coincides with priority ecological communities, priority flora and a 
mapped Conservation Category Wetland. 

Environmental surveys and studies undertaken by the proponent show that the 
proposal area supports a high diversity of flora and fauna. This diversity of 
communities and habitats is associated with the sensitive damplands in the Bush 
Forever site. Due to the high biological diversity of the site, the principle of the 
conservation of biological diversity and ecological integrity (set out in section 4A 
of the EP Act) was a fundamental consideration in the EPA’s assessment of the 
proposal. 

The City of Armadale proposed measures to avoid, minimise, rectify and offset 
the impacts of the proposal, however these measures did not adequately 
mitigate or counterbalance the significant residual impacts on this important area 
of natural bushland. 

The EPA concluded it could not recommend approval because the road would 
fragment a highly biologically diverse bushland, impacting on locally and 
regionally significant environmental values. Cutting through the largely intact 
natural bushland would impact on the ecological integrity of the reserve through 
the fragmentation of vegetation communities and the restriction of movement of 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/RoeHighwayExtension.aspx
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fauna. The construction of the road would result in changes in hydrological 
processes to the point where the range and diversity of the microhabitats of the 
damplands would be significantly impacted over time. 

The proposal did not meet the EPA’s objectives for the key environmental factors 
of flora and vegetation, terrestrial fauna and hydrological processes. The EPA 
therefore concluded that the proposal is environmentally unacceptable and 
recommended it should not be implemented. 

The EPA provided advice supporting the acquisition of the remaining privately 
owned Lots within Bush Forever Site 342 and the closure of the road reserve 
and its amalgamation into the adjoining reserves. This would allow for the 
comprehensive long term management, protection and enhancement of the 
environmental values of the Bush Forever site. 

EPA Report 1518 Keane Road Strategic Link was published in June 2014. 

Environmental planning 

The land use planning system in Western Australia is a hierarchical framework of 
planning instruments where land use planning and environmental issues are 
considered from broad strategic levels through to detailed statutory planning 
controls. 

The OEPA recognises that environmental outcomes and decision making are 
more efficient and effective when broad regional and district scale environment 
issues are considered early in strategic planning, and site-specific environmental 
matters are dealt with at the detailed statutory stages of the planning process.  

For this reason the OEPA works with the Department of Planning (DoP), local 
authorities, consultants and landowners during the preparation of land use 
planning strategies and structure plans. During 2013-14 the OEPA provided 
advice on 13 strategies and structure plans. 

The Planning and Development Act 2005 (P&D Act) and the Metropolitan 
Redevelopment Authority Act 2011 require the Western Australian Planning 
Commission, local government authorities and the Metropolitan Redevelopment 
Authority to refer all schemes and scheme amendments to the EPA. 

In September 2013, the DoP began a review of proposed legislative 
amendments and reform measures. The primary purpose of the legislative 
review and reforms is to consider the operation and effectiveness of the P&D 
Act, streamlining processes and aligning statutory outcomes with strategic 
frameworks. The proposed amendments and reforms may change how the P&D 
Act and the Metropolitan Region Scheme (MRS) interact with the EP Act and the 
EPA’s statutory role in land use planning. 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1518-KeaneRoadStrategicLink.aspx
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The OEPA and the DoP are collaborating on the legislative amendments and 
other reforms to achieve the desired efficiencies without compromising the 
protection of the environment. 

During 2013 -14, the EPA considered 235 schemes and amendments under 
section 48A of the EP Act. The EPA did not consider that any of the schemes or 
amendments raised environmental issues significant enough to warrant a formal 
environmental assessment, however it provided environmental advice, to be 
implemented through the planning process, on 41 of the referrals. This advice is 
published on the EPA’s website. The EPA completed its assessment of 
Metropolitan Region Scheme (MRS) Amendment 1188/57 (see details below) 
and also determined that two amendments were, by their nature, incapable of 
being made environmentally acceptable. 

Of the 235 schemes and amendments considered by the EPA, 42 were 
determined using a modified assessment process intended to streamline local 
scheme amendments that do not raise any significant environmental issues. 

Port Hedland noise and dust 

In its 2012–13 Annual Report, the EPA identified that dust in Port Hedland was a 
key issue of concern. During 2013–14, the OEPA supported the EPA by helping 
it with its statutory responsibilities with respect to amendments to the Town of 
Port Hedland Town Planning Scheme 5 and by contributing to the work of the 
Port Hedland Dust Taskforce and its subcommittees. 

During the year, the EPA made decisions under section 48A of the EP Act on six 
amendments to the Town of Port Hedland Town Planning Scheme 5. Of these, 
the EPA determined that four amendments – Amendments 65, 66, 67 and 68 – 
did not require formal environmental impact assessment under Division 3 Part IV 
of the EP Act. 

The EPA determined that two amendments – Amendments 56 and 59 – were, by 
their nature, incapable of being made environmentally acceptable at the time of 
the determinations. This was due to the subject land being within that part of Port 
Hedland that has high levels of dust. The EPA considered that the Port Hedland 
Dust Health Risk Assessment, which is underway and due to report in 2015, 
should be completed before land is rezoned to provide for additional residential 
development in these areas. The EPA published a comprehensive statement of 
reasons for each of the decisions on its website. 

The Port Hedland Dust Taskforce met twice in 2013-14 with the March 2014 
meeting held in Port Hedland. The OEPA supported the EPA Chairman at these 
meetings. The OEPA also attended and contributed to meetings of the 
Taskforce’s Health Studies, Noise Modelling, Cumulative Air Quality Modelling, 
and Scenario Planning subcommittees.  
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The Taskforce and its subcommittees are working to resolve potential land use 
conflicts resulting from the co-location of an operating port and sensitive land 
uses such as residential accommodation. 

Metropolitan Region Scheme Amendment 1188/57 – Wellard Urban 
Precinct East 

The Western Australian Planning Commission (WAPC) Metropolitan Region 
Scheme (MRS) Amendment 1188/57 was assessed as an Environmental 
Review (ER).  

The amendment defines the boundary between a proposed 70 ha urban 
development and an existing wetland area, Bollard Bulrush Swamp, which is 
protected under the Environmental Protection (Swan Coastal Plain Lakes) Policy 
1992 (Lakes EPP) and mapped as a Conservation Category Wetland (CCW) by 
Parks and Wildlife.  

The key environmental factor evaluated was inland waters environmental quality. 

The majority of the amendment area has been previously cleared for rural 
purposes including large lot rural living. The land is located on the eastern side of 
the wetland. The amendment area is also bounded by urban development to the 
north and east, and the Peel Main Drain to the west and south. 

The EPA noted that the amendment was substantially modified during the course 
of the assessment to reduce the impact on Bollard Bulrush Swamp. The original 
intention of the amendment was to develop a significant area of land within the 
wetland, however the modification removed the majority of the development from 
the CCW and its buffer. 

The WAPC has stated that the following issues are to be addressed prior to the 
‘lifting’ of Urban Deferment (the change of the amendment area from ‘Urban 
Deferred’ to ‘Urban’ under the MRS): 

• a district water management strategy is to be approved for the site by the 
Department of Water; and 

• a bush fire hazard assessment is to be undertaken for the site to the 
satisfaction of the Department of Fire and Emergency Services. 

The EPA concluded that the amendment can be managed to meet its objectives 
for inland waters environmental quality due to the modifications to reduce 
impacts on Bollard Bulrush Swamp and the removal of the majority of 
development from the CCW. It recommended that the amendment could be 
implemented without any conditions.  
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Post approval assessment 

The OEPA is responsible for assessing changes to proposals and 
implementation conditions under s45C and s46 of the EP Act respectively 
following the publication of an implementation statement. The OEPA also 
assesses the acceptability of Environmental Management Plans (EMPs) as 
required by conditions of implementation statements. 

Table 2: Post approval work assessed  

 
Requests 
received Completed 2012-13 

Section 45C 33 39 51/42 

Section 46 20 17 19/13 

Section 46C 3 4 5/2 

EMP 80 76 95/72 

 

Consolidating and reducing duplication in Ministerial statements 

The EPA continues to receive an increasing number of proposals to consolidate 
and reduce duplication in Ministerial statements (issued when the Minister for 
Environment determines that a proposal may be implemented). To achieve this 
outcome, the EPA uses the provisions of section 45C (change to proposals), and 
section 46 (change to conditions) of the EP Act and applies the guidance 
provided by recently published EPA Environmental Assessment Guidelines 
(EAGs).  

This approach is evident in the EPA’s recommendations contained in 
Report 1508 West Angelas Iron Ore Project.  

Under Ministerial Statement 514, issued in June 1999, Robe River Mining Co Pty 
Ltd (Robe) was authorised to implement the West Angelas Iron Ore Project, 
130 km west of Newman. The project includes the development of an iron ore 
mine and ore processing, and construction of a rail line and expansion of port 
facilities at Cape Lambert. 

In 2011, Robe applied to the EPA proposing to contemporise and rationalise the 
17 implementation conditions and delete all proponent commitments for the West 
Angelas Iron Ore Project, under section 46 of the EP Act. The commitments 
were considered to be either redundant, duplicated the requirements of existing 
ministerial conditions, or were fully implemented. In addition the Cape Lambert 
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Port upgrade gained its own authorisation (Ministerial statement) making the port 
development conditions in Statement 514 redundant. 

The EPA recommended to the Minister for Environment that it was appropriate to 
delete a majority of implementation conditions and commitments of Statement 
514 and replace them with consolidated, contemporary style conditions in 
accordance with EAG 11 Recommending environmental conditions, addressing: 
Environmental Management Plans, groundwater abstraction and dewatering, 
impacts on conservation significant communities and species, and rehabilitation 
and closure.   

To support the changes to conditions, the EPA also recommended changes to 
the description of the proposal in accordance with EAG 1 Defining the key 
characteristics of a proposal, EAG 2 Changes to proposals after assessment, 
EAG 8 Environmental factors and objectives, and EAG 9 Application of a 
significance framework in the environmental impact assessment process.  

The outcome of the EPA’s recommendations was a new Ministerial Statement 
970, issued in June 2014, to significantly reduce duplication of management 
requirements, simplify audit tracking, compliance and reporting, and to improve 
rehabilitation and closure planning outcomes. 

EPA Report 1508 West Angelas Iron Ore Project - inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to amend Ministerial Statement 514 was 
published in April 2014. 

Ministerial Statement 970 was subsequently issued on 12 June 2014. 

Environmental improvement – decommissioning of Kalgoorlie’s 
Gidgi Gold Roaster 

Kalgoorlie Consolidated Gold Mines Pty Ltd (KCGM) obtained approval under 
the EP Act for the commissioning of a gold roaster in 1988 and a Phase II 
Expansion of the Gidji Gold Roaster in September 1989. The proposals are 
subject to implementation conditions of Ministerial statements 28 and 77. The 
operation of the two gold roasters, approximately 17 km north-north-west of the 
Kalgoorlie Town Centre, has resulted in an overall increase in atmospheric 
emissions in the Eastern Goldfield region, particularly sulphur dioxide.   

In January 2014, KCGM submitted a proposal to replace the technology at the 
Gidji operation from high temperature ‘roasting’ to ‘ultra-fine grinding’ followed by 
carbon-in-pulp gold extraction. The change in proposal consisted of:  

• the addition of a 30 tonne per hour ultra-fine grinding mill; and 
• the closure of the two existing gold roasters. 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1508-WestAngelass46.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1508-WestAngelass46.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EIA/EPAReports/Pages/1508-WestAngelass46.aspx
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/Statement%20No.%20970.pdf
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The EPA assessed the proposed changes under section 45C of the EP Act and 
against EAG 2 Changes to Proposals after Assessment – section 45C of the EP 
Act. The EPA concluded that the proposed changes were unlikely to have a 
significant detrimental effect on the environment that is additional to, or different 
from, the effect of the original proposal, because: 

• the change in technology will result in mercury and sulphur that would 
previously have been released from the ore into the atmosphere, being 
captured and treated by the ultra-fine grinding process; and 

• even though tailings from the process will increase in volume, and contain 
higher concentrations of pollutants, the tailings will be deposited into an 
existing lined tailings storage facility. The additional tailings produced under 
the new process also contain substances with the capacity to buffer acid 
formation, which would allow establishment of a water-shedding cover system 
for the tailings storage facility at closure. 

The closure of the two existing concentrate roasters will result in removal of a 
significant regional source of sulphur dioxide and mercury emissions to air, 
reducing sulphur dioxide emissions by approximately 200,000 tonnes per annum 
and mercury emissions by some four tonnes per annum.  

The s45C Change to Proposal was approved on 26 March 2014. 

Policy development 

Perth-Peel strategic assessment 

In 2013–14 the OEPA has continued to actively contribute to the Strategic 
Assessment of Perth-Peel region being undertaken by the Commonwealth 
Department of the Environment and the Government of Western Australia. The 
strategic assessment is being led by the Department of the Premier and Cabinet 
and also involves the departments of Parks and Wildlife, Planning, Mines and 
Petroleum, Water, and Environment Regulation through a State Working Group.  

The assessment is being undertaken in anticipation of the growth of the Perth-
Peel region and the potential environmental impacts of the development required 
to support a city of 3.5 million people. 

The Commonwealth will assess the potential impacts on matters of national 
environmental significance, protected under the Environment Protection and 
Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999.  

In parallel, the EPA is undertaking a State environmental review of the proposed 
future development of the Perth-Peel region and will provide strategic 
environmental advice on the environmental matters of interest to the State. The 
EPA’s report will include guidance to apply to subsequent approval processes to 
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ensure environmental outcomes are delivered in the most efficient and timely 
manner.   

The areas subject to the assessment will include urban areas identified through 
subregional structure plans (being prepared by the DoP and the WAPC), as well 
as basic raw material extraction areas, infrastructure corridors, and the industrial 
areas identified in the DoP and WAPC’s Economic and Employment Lands 
Strategy (April 2012). 

To help in the preparation of the subregional structure plans, the EPA provided 
an environmental scoping document to the DoP and the WAPC. The scoping 
document identified and provided the relevant information on the significant 
environmental values and objectives within the Perth-Peel region for the EPA’s 
environmental factors.   

The environmental scoping document forms the basis of the environmental 
advice being prepared for the EPA’s report to the Minister for Environment.  

The parallel consideration of State and Commonwealth environmental issues 
early in the strategic planning process will allow for future streamlined 
environmental and planning approvals. This will ensure that there are better 
environmental outcomes and will provide certainty for government, industry and 
the community for future development proposals in the Perth-Peel region. 

WA Environmental Offsets Guidelines 

In 2013–14, the OEPA led the development of the WA Environmental Offsets 
Guidelines in collaboration with relevant government agencies and industry 
bodies. These Guidelines support the WA Environmental Offsets Policy (2011) 
and will apply to all environmental offsets imposed by the State through 
environmental approval processes.  

The publication of the Guidelines will provide further clarity for government 
agencies and proponents in determining when a significant residual impact is 
likely to occur, what an appropriate offset is, and a methodology for determining 
the quantum of an offset. The Guidelines will extend the EPA’s significance 
framework to help conceptualise the effect of the mitigation hierarchy in reducing 
the significance of a proposal. The Guidelines will also expand on the roles and 
responsibilities of government agencies and proponents in developing and 
implementing offsets. 

The EPA acknowledges the development of the Policy and Guidelines and will 
review its own offset policy suite once the Guidelines are published. 
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State Offsets Register 

The Western Australian Government launched the Environmental Offsets 
Register on 25 July 2013. The purpose of the register is to provide a record of all 
environmental offsets imposed by the State through environmental approvals 
processes. This includes all offsets imposed through Ministerial Statements.  

The register increases transparency in the offsets process by making details of 
the offset, including the determination of significance and appropriate offset 
quantum, publicly available. While these details continue to be provided in the 
EPA’s report to the Minister for specific proposals, the Register allows for easy 
comparison of offsets, with the ability to sort by the environmental factor 
impacted or by region. The register also increases accountability by providing a 
check of whether an offset has been implemented and completed. 

The OEPA is progressively updating the Register to include details of offsets 
imposed prior to 25 July 2013 and currently lists 23 proposals in the Register. 
Eight offsets were imposed by the Minister for Environment under Part IV of the 
EP Act in 2013–14. 

The Register can be viewed at www.offsetsregister.wa.gov.au. 

Review and refinement of environmental assessment policy 

A comprehensive review program of the EPA policy suite (Environmental 
Assessment Guidelines, Guidance Statements, Environmental Protection 
Bulletins and Position Statements) was initiated in 2012–13, with approximately 
30% being reviewed in that year. The remainder of the policies have been 
reviewed during 2013–14. The aim of the review program is to ensure a 
contemporary, fit-for-purpose suite of EPA policies that provide clear advice to 
proponents and the community.  

During the year, twelve EPA policies have been withdrawn, one revised and 
another nine are in the process of being updated, to be finalised in 2014–15. 
While many have been withdrawn or are proposed for revision, new policies are 
also being prepared to address current EPA issues and priorities. 

New and revised environmental bulletins 

Environmental Protection Bulletins (EPBs) are short statements of the EPA’s 
position on environmental matters or other matters relating to the EPA’s 
objectives, functions and powers under the EP Act. Three new EPBs were 
released in 2013-14 and one EPB was revised.  

EPB 19 - EPA involvement in mine closure.   
This bulletin clarifies the roles of the DMP and the EPA in mine closure and 
explains the circumstances when the EPA will assess mine closure. The DMP is 

http://www.offsetsregister.wa.gov.au/
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responsible for ensuring that mine sites are closed, decommissioned and 
rehabilitated in an environmentally sustainable manner under the Mining Act 
1978. The EPA will only assess mine closure where there are potentially 
significant impacts or risks associated with mine closure which cannot be 
adequately regulated by the DMP or for mine sites that are not subject to the 
Mining Act 1978. 

EPB 19 was released on 31 July 2013.  

EPB 20 - Protection of naturally vegetated areas through planning and 
development.  
Naturally vegetated areas in Western Australia’s cities and towns support 
significant biodiversity and provide important amenity to urban residents. This 
bulletin sets out the EPA’s views and expectations for the design of urban and 
peri-urban development proposals in order to protect naturally vegetated areas.  

The bulletin is intended to help planners and developers integrate and consider 
naturally vegetated areas during all stages of the planning process, to meet the 
EPA’s environmental objectives for vegetation and flora, and terrestrial fauna. 
This bulletin applies to strategic planning, structure plans, new schemes and 
scheme amendments, subdivision and development proposals, in urban and 
peri-urban areas of Western Australia. 

EPB 20 was released on 4 December 2013.  

EPB 21 - Guidance for Wind Farm Developments.  
The EPA recognises that wind farms are a part of the State’s mix of renewable 
energies now and into the future. The aim of this bulletin is to provide guidance 
to proponents and the public on when a wind farm proposal should be referred to 
the EPA. The bulletin also encourages early engagement with the community 
about the siting of wind farms and their potential impacts and identifies the 
issues that the EPA considers when reviewing the potential environmental 
impacts of a wind farm proposal. Appropriate site selection and design of the 
wind farm can avoid or mitigate potential impacts to environmental factors. The 
EPA expects proponents to consider the potential environmental impacts of their 
proposal, including by way of conducting thorough community consultation. 

EPB 21 was released on 25 February 2014.  

EPB 5 – Guidance for developing inland drainage proposals in the 
Wheatbelt.  
This bulletin was originally released in July 2009 in recognition of the impact of 
dryland salinity in the WA agricultural land zone and the use of inland drainage 
as a solution to manage and mitigate these impacts. In 2012, the departments of 
Water, Agriculture and Food WA and the former Department of Environment and 
Conservation (now Parks and Wildlife) jointly released the Policy framework for 
inland drainage. EPB 5 was revised by the EPA to complement the policy 

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EPB%2019.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EPB%2020%20Dec13.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EPB%2021%20Windfarms250214.pdf
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framework by identifying the environmental factors that may be impacted by an 
inland drainage project and which should be considered by decision-makers in 
the assessment of drainage proposals. 

The revised version of EPB 5 was published on 2 April 2014.  

EIA reform  

Two new Environmental Assessment Guidelines (EAGs) were released in 2013–
14. EAGs are issued by the EPA to provide advice to proponents and the public 
generally on the procedures and minimum environmental requirements that the 
EPA expects to be met during the environmental impact assessment process.  

EAG 10 – Scoping a proposal 
This guideline addresses the development of EPA-prepared Environmental 
Scoping Documents (ESDs). ESDs set out the form, content, timing and 
procedure for the environmental review of proposals that are assessed by the 
EPA at the level of PER. The purpose of the guideline is to convey, primarily to 
proponents and consultants, the EPA’s expectations regarding the content and 
form of an ESD and the process that will be followed in preparing an ESD, 
including the roles and responsibilities of the various parties to this process. 
Clear and concise ESDs that focus on the most important environmental factors 
for a proposal will support an effective and efficient environmental impact 
assessment process.  

EAG 10 was released on 26 August 2013.  

EAG 11 – Recommending environmental conditions 
If the EPA recommends to the Minister for Environment that implementation of a 
proposal be allowed, it must also provide its recommendation as to the 
conditions, if any, to be applied. This guideline describes the EPA’s approach to 
recommending conditions. It was developed to ensure that proposal 
implementation conditions recommended by the EPA are:  

• relevant to and effective in meeting the EPA’s environmental objectives; 
• consistent in form and language;  
• readily assessed for compliance;  
• enforceable; and  
• improved from lessons learned over time.  

It also provides guidance to proponents on the types of conditions that may be 
applied to their proposal and reaffirms the importance of the assessment process 
in providing the EPA with confidence that its objectives will be met and, in 
providing this confidence, also providing for concise outcome-based conditions.  

EAG 11 was released on 13 September 2013.  

http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EPB%205_Wheatbelt%20drainage-rev_020514.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EAG%2010%20Scoping%20a%20proposal%20260813.pdf
http://www.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EAG%2011%20Recommending%20environmental%20conditions%20130913.pdf
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Review of State Environmental (Cockburn Sound) Policy 2005 

The OEPA worked collaboratively with the Cockburn Sound Management 
Council and the departments of Environment Regulation and Parks and Wildlife 
to review and revise the State Environmental (Cockburn Sound) Policy 2005 and 
its two supporting technical documents on behalf of the EPA. The revised 
documents were released for stakeholder consultation at the end of 2013.   

Following the consultation period the OEPA has further revised the documents in 
order to take into account stakeholder comments. The revised documents 
include amendments to update environmental quality criteria and to strengthen 
monitoring and implementation of the policy, in line with recommendations 
included in the Western Australian Auditor-General’s report of September 2010. 

Bilateral Agreements between the Commonwealth of Australia and 
the State of Western Australia  

A Bilateral Agreement between the Commonwealth and the State of Western 
Australia has operated since 2002 under the Environment Protection and 
Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 (EPBC Act). The Bilateral Agreement allows 
for the Commonwealth to rely on the State environmental impact assessment for 
approvals under that Act. A renewed Bilateral Agreement was signed in March 
2012 and subsequently amended in June 2013 to recognise the EPA’s 
Environmental Impact Assessment Administrative Procedures 2012, gazetted in 
December 2012. The Bilateral Agreement accredits only the EPA’s PER level of 
assessment.  

In August 2013, the OEPA and the Commonwealth Department of the 
Environment (DotE) finalised operational arrangements that underpin the 
Bilateral Agreement. The arrangements help the OEPA and the DotE to 
effectively and efficiently administer the Bilateral Agreement.  

In May 2014 the Commonwealth released a draft new and expanded 
assessment bilateral agreement for public comment. The draft agreement 
provides for the accreditation of both the EPA’s API and PER levels of 
assessment. It also provides for the accreditation of the clearing of native 
vegetation permit process administered by the Department of Environment 
Regulation under Part V of the EP Act. Finalisation of the agreement following 
the comment period will be a step towards establishing a ‘one stop shop’ for 
environmental approvals consistent with the Memorandum of Understanding 
signed by the Commonwealth and the State in December 2013. An approval 
bilateral agreement is also being negotiated to deliver the ‘one stop shop’.  
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Strategic approach to the regulation of shale and tight gas projects   

Both the EPA and OEPA worked proactively throughout the year with the DMP to 
develop a robust regulatory framework for shale and tight gas projects involving 
the practice of hydraulic fracturing.  

The EPA recognises the high level of community interest in hydraulic fracturing, 
and believes that building community confidence in the regulation of this activity 
is best achieved through: 

• transparent and open communication, by both regulators and proponents; 
• a robust regulatory framework;  
• a sound knowledge base about the target groundwater basins, the receiving 

environment, and the chemicals and techniques involved; and 
• the application of best practice management, especially where there is any 

uncertainty about the potential risks and impacts to the environment. 

The EPA considered two referrals involving hydraulic fracturing during 2013–14. 
In both cases, the EPA determined that the proposals were not so significant as 
to warrant formal environmental impact assessment. However, it published 
public advice to the proponent and a statement of reasons for its decision.    

In both cases, the EPA’s rationale was based on the following proposal 
characteristics: 

• The proposals comprise small scale, proof-of-concept exploration drilling. 
• The hydraulic fracture stimulation is proposed to occur at significant depths, 

ranging from 1,500 m to 3,500 m across the proposals. In each case, there is 
significant vertical separation with impermeable barriers of rock, shale or other 
aquitard materials between the fracturing zone and fresh water aquifers. 

• The integrity of well drilling, casing construction, and well rehabilitation and 
closure is regulated by the DMP to meet recognised international standards. 
This ensures that there is a negligible risk of leakage between aquifers, 
introduction of contaminants to other aquifers, and from abandonment of 
wells.  

• The management, storage and disposal of produced water which contains 
contaminants associated with fracking fluid is appropriate to manage risks, 
given the quantities involved and toxicity of the materials. 

• The proposals will be subject to the approval of Environment Plans by the 
DMP. These plans are required to demonstrate that environmental risks of the 
activity will continuously be reduced to a low as is reasonably practicable.  

The EPA is aware that larger-scale trials or full production-scale hydraulic 
fracturing proposals may be referred to the EPA within the next year or two. It is 
currently preparing policy guidance to help proponents and the community 
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understand the EPA’s expectations and information requirements in order to 
consider larger-scale proposals.  

Aboriginal Heritage 

The focus of the Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 is the protection of sites with social 
and heritage significance. A primary focus of the EP Act is to consider proposals 
which have the potential to have a significant impact on the environment, some 
of which may also have Aboriginal heritage significance. 

In 2013–14 the OEPA continued to work with the Department of Aboriginal 
Affairs (DAA) through the established working group to progress an Interagency 
Working Agreement between the DAA and the OEPA. Two training workshops 
have been held during the year to help OEPA staff gain a greater understanding 
of aboriginal heritage issues. 

Dredging Science Node of the Western Australian Marine Science 
Institution  

The Dredging Science Node of the Western Australian Marine Science Institution 
formally began in March 2013. 

The Dredging Science Node has been established to enhance the capacity of 
Government and industry to predict and manage the impacts of dredging. The 
Node is designed to address key areas of uncertainty and in turn deliver 
outcomes to increase the confidence, timeliness and efficiency of the 
assessment, approval and regulatory processes associated with dredging 
projects.  

The Dredging Science Node involves inter-disciplinary research delivered 
through a combination of reviews, field studies and laboratory experimentation. 
Work is being undertaken by a range of State and Commonwealth government 
agencies and universities. Officers from the OEPA’s Marine Ecosystems Branch 
participate as the Node Leader Policy and the Node Science Coordinator.  

The first phase is a three to four year program of targeted research. During 
2013-14 literature reviews were completed for five of the nine themes contained 
in the Node Science Plan. These reviews will inform the subsequent field and 
laboratory studies to be undertaken. Initial field work for two themes was 
completed in the vicinity of the Wheatstone Dredging Project off Onslow. Further 
field work and laboratory experimentation will occur over the next 12 months.  

A total of $7.95M has been allocated from WAMSI for this program of work and 
with co-investment the total value of the proposed research to date is over $17M.  
This research program has brought together 10 research institutions with 48 
scientists, 33 technicians and support staff and 9 PhD students.  
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Environmental monitoring datasets have been also been provided by Chevron 
Australia (Gorgon and Wheatstone projects), Woodside Energy (Pluto and 
James Price Point projects) and Rio Tinto Iron Ore (Cape Lambert projects) for 
use by scientists working in the Dredging Science Node. These data sets total 
approximately 6TB and include valuable baseline and compliance monitoring 
data and imagery. It is expected that analysis of these datasets will lead to a 
better understanding of the actual pressure gradients and range of measured 
biological responses associated with dredging in a variety of biophysical settings. 
This in turn will help identify broad pressure: response relationships and provide 
context for laboratory and field experiments. It will also provide a basis to 
evaluate the efficacy of the various monitoring approaches and develop efficient 
and effective monitoring protocols. 

The Node’s governance model is specifically designed to foster strong links 
between research providers and key end-users in government and the private 
sector. To maximise uptake, research is ‘applied’ in nature and the outputs will 
be presented in forms that are ‘fit for purpose’ and accompanied by clear 
guidance and protocols for the application of key findings of the research. 
Collectively, the standard methods and protocols generated through this 
research program will represent a “compendium of contemporary best practice” 
for dredging impact prediction, monitoring and management in Western 
Australia. 

Environmental compliance audits 

Audit the compliance with conditions set under Ministerial approvals and undertake 
enforcement action as appropriate. 

 

 

2013 
ACTUAL 

$ 

2014 
ESTIMATE 

$ 

2014 
ACTUAL 

$ 

VARIANCE 
$ 
 

Total cost of service 1,992,690 2,202,000 1,931,892 270,108 

 

2012-13 
ACTUAL 

$ 

2013-14 
TARGET 

$ 

2013-14 
ACTUAL 

$ 

2013-14 
VARIANCE OF 
TARGET TO 
ACTUAL$ 

 

Efficiency indicators     

Average cost per environmental 
audit completed 

34,908 36,705 32,198 (4,507) 
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Responsibility for monitoring compliance with the implementation of proposals 
and their conditions rests with the OEPA and is achieved through: 

• environmental management plan approvals; 
• changes to proposals; 
• review of implementation conditions, and 
• compliance auditing. 

An annual compliance program is developed to audit proposals and compliance 
with the implementation conditions of Statements issued by the Minister for 
Environment. The program consists of proactive audits, industry sector reviews 
and reactive audits as required. Each year a series of targeted audits are 
included to focus on specific industry sectors and targeted implementation 
conditions. This enables resources to be effectively managed to achieve the best 
environmental outcome. 

While the OEPA does not control whether a proponent complies with all 
environmental conditions, the results from the compliance audits identify areas to 
improve proponent’s compliance, and help in improving future compliance 
programs and the environmental impact assessment process. 

A joint training initiative was held with the Department of Environment 
Regulation, Department of Mines and Petroleum, and the Office of the 
Environmental Protection Authority in April 2014. The training was the first of its 
type in Western Australia and provided officers from all three agencies with 
common competency-based skills in Environmental Compliance Auditing. The 
course was provided by officers from the New South Wales Environmental 
Protection Authority, under direction of the Australasian Environmental Law 
Enforcement and Regulators Network (AELERT). 

Compliance and audit activity 

In 2013–14, sixty audits were conducted, including ten industry sector audits 
focusing on the oil and gas industry. (In 2012–13, twenty-five industry sector 
audits focusing on emissions to the environment, offsets and wastewater outfalls 
were completed.) Of the audits completed during the year, 87% were found to be 
compliant with all conditions (2012–13: 92%). 

The industry sector audits of the oil and gas industry included exploration drilling, 
gas-fed pipelines, oilfield developments, and gas processing and export facilities, 
all of which may have the potential to impact on terrestrial and marine fauna and 
flora, air and water quality or other environmental receptors. These proposals 
were predominately located along the Pilbara Coast. 
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Six per cent of overall proposals with Ministerial statements published before 
1 July of the related financial year were audited for compliance during 2013–14 
(2012–13: 6.33%). 

All proposals identified as high priority were audited during 2013–14 (2012–13: 
100%), and all were found to be compliant with the implementation conditions of 
their Ministerial statements (2012–13: 100%). 

Compliance officers also conducted a range of audits on projects in the 
Goldfields, Pilbara, Gascoyne and Great Southern regions, Boddington and 
Collie areas, Barrow Island, and the greater Perth metropolitan area throughout 
2013–14. Facilities audited included port and rail infrastructure, power generation 
facilities, waste disposal facilities, and nickel, rare earth, lead carbonate, gold 
and iron ore mines. 

The audits resulted in a range of positive environmental and procedural 
outcomes. One specific example is the identification of issues at an ammonia 
plant and recognition of the need to improve the plant’s internal environmental 
processes and procedures, including a full assessment of its potential 
environmental impact.  

A number of audits during the year identified non-compliances ranging from late 
submission of reports to exceedence of trigger levels or limits specified within the 
respective Ministerial Statements. Each resulted in the proponent being issued a 
Notice of Non-Compliance, with corrective actions required to rectify the issue 
and regain compliance. 

The Minister for Environment is informed of each non-compliance, which enables 
a range of actions to be undertaken if required. 

The effectiveness of the compliance monitoring program in ensuring proponents 
comply with Ministerial conditions is demonstrated by examining the “percentage 
of non-compliances where remedial action has been taken by the proponent 
within the time specified in the Notice of Non-Compliance”.  

During the year, 92.31% of all actions to resolve non-compliance were 
completed by the required date (2012–13: 100%). The majority of actions that 
were not completed by the required date relate to late submissions of reports 
and/or documentation. 

Significant proposals audited 

The OEPA applies a priority rating to all proposals based on a number of factors 
including the condition of the receiving environment, potential environmental 
impact and level of stakeholder interest. The Gorgon Gas Development and its 
associated Jansz Feed Gas Pipeline in the Barrow Island nature reserve, as well 
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as the Magellan Lead Carbonate Project in Wiluna are some of the proposals 
identified by the OEPA as significant. 

Gorgon Gas Development and Associated Jansz Feed Pipeline 

The 2013–14 audit of the Gorgon development focused on compliance with the 
Terrestrial and Marine Quarantine Management System. This included a site visit 
to the Dampier supply base and Barrow Island facilities.  

The audit confirmed the Quarantine Management System was being 
implemented in accordance with the conditions of Ministerial Statements 769 and 
800. 

Magellan Lead Carbonate Project 

The Magellan Lead Carbonate Project was audited during 2013–14.  The audit 
focused on the bagging and shipping of lead carbonate concentrate.  

The audit confirmed that Rosslyn Hill Mining Pty Ltd is complying with all bagging 
and shipping related conditions and that the lead carbonate concentrate is being 
safely contained and transported. 

Improving our business 

Revision of the outcome based management structure of the OEPA 

In 2012, the OEPA commenced a review of its key performance indicators to 
ensure they were robust, contemporary and fit for purpose. 

As part of this review, the OEPA engaged Dr Gordon Robertson PSM, a former 
Deputy Auditor General, as a consultant to review the current KPIs, and 
recommend improvements that would satisfy the OEPA's performance reporting 
requirements. 

During 2013–14 the structure to capture data for the new KPIs was finalised, and 
a KPI Manual and tracking sheet for 2014–15 is now in place. 

Revised services and indicators were endorsed by Treasury, the Office of the 
Auditor General and the Minister for Environment and are in place for the 2014–
2015 financial year.  

The existing and revised indicators are outlined below.   
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 Existing OBM structure 2013-2014 Revised OBM structure from 2014-
2015 

Government 
Goal 

Social and Environmental 
responsibility: 
Ensuring that economic activity is 
managed in a socially and 
environmentally responsible manner for 
the long-term benefit of the State. 

Social and Environmental 
responsibility: 
Ensuring that economic activity is 
managed in a socially and 
environmentally responsible manner for 
the long-term benefit of the State. 

Desired 
Outcome 

An efficient and effective environmental 
impact assessment and compliance 
system. 

Quality advice to the EPA and Minister 
on significant proposals, compliance 
and environmental issues. 

Services 1. Environmental Impact Assessment 
and Policies 

2. Environmental Compliance Audits 

1. Environmental Impact Assessment 
services to the EPA 

2. Environmental Management 
services to the EPA 

3. Compliance Monitoring services to 
the Minister 

 

Assessment 
services to the 
EPA 

Percentage of approved projects with 
actual impacts not exceeding those 
predicted during assessment 
(effectiveness) 

 

 Quality of the OEPA’s EIA services in 
line with best practice principles of EIA 
(effectiveness) 

 Percentage of conditions which did not 
require significant change following the 
appeal process (effectiveness) 

Percentage of assessments that met 
agreed initial timelines (effectiveness) 

Percentage of assessments that met 
agreed initial timelines (effectiveness) 

Average cost per environmental 
assessment (efficiency) 

Cost per standardised unit of 
assessment output (efficiency) 

Environmental 
Management 
services to the 
EPA  

 Quality of the OEPA’s environmental 
management services (effectiveness) 

Average cost per environmental policy 
developed (efficiency) 

Cost per standardised unit of 
environmental management services 
output (efficiency) 

Compliance 
Monitoring 
services to the 
Minister 

Percentage of audited projects where 
all environmental conditions have been 
met (effectiveness) 

Percentage of audited projects where 
all environmental conditions have been 
met (effectiveness) 

 Percentage of non-compliances where 
remedial action has been taken by the 
proponent within the time specified in 
the Notice of Non-Compliance 
(effectiveness) 

Average cost per environmental audit 
completed (efficiency) 

Average cost per environmental audit 
completed (efficiency) 

 
The existing (2013-14) OEPA outcome based management structure and Key Performance 
Indicators and the OEPA’s revised structure and indicators for 2014-15 
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Information management 

To enable the OEPA to better implement new contemporary information 
management systems, the office separated from the Department of Environment 
and Conservation’s computer network in 2012–13. This has allowed the agency 
to expedite the development and implementation of a Case Management System 
and provided the foundations for the implementation of a new records 
management system and financial management system. The records system 
was brought online in 2013–14 with the finance system following in March 2014. 
These systems provide efficiencies and the means for the OEPA to operate 
more autonomously to deliver services to the EPA and Government.  

Case Management System 

The OEPA was allocated $650,000 in 2011–12 to develop a project tracking 
system.  

The key aims were to: 

• develop and implement integrated, information management solutions to 
achieve greater consistency in recommendations and decisions; and 

• provide a better service to the EPA, clients and stakeholders, and provide 
greater accountability through more sophisticated performance measurement 
and trend analysis. 

During 2013–14, progress was made on capturing transactions associated with 
the pre-referral, level of assessment and assessment phases of the 
environmental impact assessment process. 

The Case Management System is being implemented in stages with phases one 
and two (pre-referral and level of assessment) implemented in January and 
February 2014 respectively. 

Development of phase three (assessment) has progressed well with completion 
scheduled for October 2014. The proposed expansion of the Bilateral 
Assessment Agreement with the Commonwealth, and possible implementation 
of an Approvals Bilateral Agreement in 2014–15, will require adjustments to the 
scope of the Case Management System, and this will affect the timing of the 
delivery of the assessment phase. Phase three will then be subject to rigorous 
user testing before implementation. 
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Disclosures and legal compliance 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Parliament of Western Australia 

OFFICE OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AUTHORITY 

Report on the Financial Statements 

I have audited the accounts and financial statements of the Office of the 
Environmental Protection Authority. 

The financial statements comprise the Statement of Financial Position as at 
30 June 2014, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes 
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Schedule of Income and Expenses by 
Service, Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service, and Summary of 
Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates for the year then 
ended, and Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and 
other explanatory information. 

General Manager's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

The General Manager is responsible for keeping proper accounts, and the 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with 
Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer's Instructions, and for such 
internal control as the General Manager determines is necessary to enable the 
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. The audit was conducted 
in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Those Standards require 
compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and 
that the audit be planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the Office's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
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order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An 
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the General 
Manager, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 
statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the financial statements are based on proper accounts and 
present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Office of the 
Environmental Protection Authority at 30 June 2014 and its financial 
performance and cash flows for the year then ended. They are in accordance 
with Australian Accounting Standards and the Treasurer's Instructions. 

Report on Controls 

I have audited the controls exercised by the Office of the Environmental 
Protection Authority during the year ended 30 June 2014. 

Controls exercised by the Office of the Environmental Protection Authority are 
those policies and procedures established by the General Manager to ensure 
that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and 
disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been in accordance with 
legislative provisions. 

General Manager's Responsibility for Controls 

The General Manager is responsible for maintaining an adequate system of 
internal control to ensure that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, 
the acquisition and disposal of public and other property, and the incurring of 
liabilities are in accordance with the Financial Management Act 2006 and the 
Treasurer's Instructions, and other relevant written law. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the controls exercised by the Office of the Environmental Protection 
Authority based on my audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing 
and Assurance Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the 
adequacy of controls to ensure that the Office complies with the legislative 
provisions. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement and 
include an evaluation of the design and implementation of relevant controls. 
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I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for my qualified audit opinion. 

Basis for Qualified Audit Opinion 

During the 2013–14 financial year, on a number of occasions the Office of the 
Environmental Protection Authority used restricted cash funds to meet 
operational needs. Controls over these restricted funds, which includes specific 
purpose grants money, were inadequate to ensure that they were used for their 
approved purpose. 

Qualified Opinion 

In my opinion, except for the effects of the matter referred to in the Basis for 
Qualified Audit Opinion paragraph, the controls exercised by the Office of the 
Environmental Protection Authority are sufficiently adequate to provide 
reasonable assurance that the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, 
the acquisition and disposal of property, and the incurring of liabilities have been 
in accordance with legislative provisions during the year ended 30 June 2014. 

Report on the Key Performance Indicators 

I have audited the key performance indicators of the Office of the Environmental 
Protection Authority for the year ended 30 June 2014. 

The key performance indicators are the key effectiveness indicators and the key 
efficiency indicators that provide information on outcome achievement and 
service provision. 

General Manager's Responsibility for the Key Performance Indicators 

The General Manager is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of 
the key performance indicators in accordance with the Financial Management 
Act 2006 and the Treasurer's Instructions and for such controls as the General 
Manager determines necessary to ensure that the key performance indicators 
fairly represent indicated performance. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

As required by the Auditor General Act 2006, my responsibility is to express an 
opinion on the key performance indicators based on my audit conducted in 
accordance with Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the key 
performance indicators. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
key performance indicators. In making these risk assessments the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to the General Manager's preparation and fair 
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presentation of the key performance indicators in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes 
evaluating the relevance and appropriateness of the key performance indicators 
for measuring the extent of outcome achievement and service provision. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for my audit opinion. 

Opinion 

In my opinion, the key performance indicators of the Office of the Environmental 
Protection Authority are relevant and appropriate to assist users to assess the 
Office's performance and fairly represent indicated performance for the year 
ended 30 June 2014. 

Independence 

In conducting this audit, I have complied with the independence requirements of 
the Auditor General Act 2006 and Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards, 
and other relevant ethical requirements. 

Matters Relating to the Electronic Publication of the Audited Financial 
Statements and Key Performance Indicators 

This auditor's report relates to the financial statements and key performance 
indicators of the Office of the Environmental Protection Authority for the year 
ended 30 June 2014 included on the Office's website. The Office's management 
is responsible for the integrity of the Office's website. This audit does not provide 
assurance on the integrity of the Office's website. The auditor's report refers only 
to the financial statements and key performance indicators described above. It 
does not provide an opinion on any other information which may have been 
hyperlinked to/from these financial statements or key performance indicators. If 
users of the financial statements and key performance indicators are concerned 
with the inherent risks arising from publication on a website, they are advised to 
refer to the hard copy of the audited financial statements and key performance 
indicators to confirm the information contained in this website version of the 
financial statements and key performance indicators. 

 
COLIN MURPHY 
AUDITOR GENERAL 
FOR WESTERN AUSTRALIA 
Perth, Western Australia 
4 August 2014
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Financial Statements 

Certification of Financial Statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2014 

The accompanying financial statements of the Office of the Environmental 
Protection Authority have been prepared in compliance with the provisions of the 
Financial Management Act 2006 from proper accounts and records to present 
fairly the financial transactions for the financial year ended 30 June 2014 and the 
financial position as at 30 June 2014. 

At the date of signing we are not aware of any circumstances which would 
render the particulars included in the financial statements misleading or 
inaccurate. 

  

Valma Cartwright 

Chief Finance Officer 

31 July 2014 

Kim Taylor 

Accountable Authority 

31 July 2014 
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Statement of Comprehensive Income 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 Note 2014 2013 

  $ $ 
COST OF SERVICES 

 
 

 
Expenses 

 
 

 
Employee benefits expense 5 12,068,882 12,349,779 
Supplies and services 6 3,212,253 4,519,339 
Depreciation and amortisation expense 7 202,044 119,986 
Grants and Subsidies 8 110,000 50,000 
Other expenses 9 450,018 473,899 
Total cost of services 

 
16,043,197 17,513,003 

  
 

 
Income 

 
 

 
Revenue 

 
 

 
Other revenue 10 87,670 221,302 
Total Revenue 

 
87,670 221,302 

  
 

 
Gains 

 
 

 
Gain on disposal of non-current assets 11 - 45,759 
Total Gains 

 
- 45,759 

Total income other than income from State Government 
 

87,670 267,061 
NET COST OF SERVICES 

 
15,955,527 17,245,942 

  
 

 
Income from State Government 12  

 
Service appropriation 

 
14,533,000 13,968,000 

Services received free of charge 
 

100,144 759,736 

Royalties for Regions Fund 
 

390,000 - 

Total income from State Government 
 

15,023,144 14,727,736 
SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD 

 
(932,383) (2,518,206) 

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD 
 

(932,383) (2,518,206) 

See also the ‘Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service’. 

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Financial Position 
As at 30 June 2014 

 
Note 2014 2013 

  
$ $ 

ASSETS 
 

 
 

Current Assets 
 

 
 

Cash and cash equivalents 23 199,220 856,401 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 13, 23 187,824 103,072 
Receivables 14 162,127 244,394 
Amounts receivable for services 15 87,000 146,000 
Other current assets 16 2,376 6,524 
Total Current Assets 

 
638,547 1,356,391 

  
 

 

Non-Current Assets 
 

 
 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 13, 23 322,771 294,487 
    
Amounts receivable for services 15 544,000 581,000 
    
Plant and equipment 17 313,510 314,282 
Intangible assets 18 154,833 203,971 
Total Non-Current Assets 

 
1,335,114 1,393,740 

TOTAL ASSETS  1,973,661 2,750,131 
    

LIABILITIES 
 

 
 

Current Liabilities 
 

 
 

Payables 20 974,116 430,321 

Provisions 21 2,013,053 2,217,905 

Total Current Liabilities 
 

2,987,169 2,648,226 

  
 

 

Non-Current Liabilities 
 

 
 

Provisions 21 813,706 996,736 
Total Non-Current Liabilities  813,706 996,736 
TOTAL LIABILITIES  3,800,875 3,644,962 
    
NET ASSETS  (1,827,214) (894,831) 
    

EQUITY 22   
Contributed equity  443,675 443,675 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)  (2,270,889) (1,338,506) 
TOTAL EQUITY  (1,827,214) (894,831) 

See also the ‘Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service’. 

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
Note Contributed 

equity 
Accumulated 

surplus Total equity 

  
$ $ $ 

Balance at 1 July 2012 22 375,675 1,179,700 1,555,397 
Surplus/(deficit)  - (2,518,206) (2,518,206) 
Transactions with owners in their capacity 
as owners:  - - - 

Capital appropriations  68,000 - 68,000 
Balance at 30 June 2013  443,675 (1,338,506) (894,831) 
     
Balance at 1 July 2013  443,675 (1,338,506) (894,831) 
Surplus/(deficit)   (932,383) (932,383) 
Transactions with owners in their capacity 
as owners: 

 - - - 

Capital appropriations  - - - 
Balance at 30 June 2014  443,675 (2,270,889) (1,827,214) 

 

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
Note 2014 2013 

  
$ $ 

CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT 
 

 
 

Service appropriation 
 

14,629,000 13,918,000 
Capital appropriations 

 
- 68,000 

Royalties for Regions 
 

390,000 - 
Net cash provided by State Government 

 
15,019,000 13,986,000 

    
Utilised as follows: 

 
 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

 
 

 
Payments  

 
 

Employee benefits 
 

(12,342,203) (11,653,287) 
Supplies and services 

 
(2,577,008) (3,718,652) 

Grants 
 

(110,000) (50,000) 
GST payments on purchases 

 
(216,062) (382,067) 

Other payments 
 

(528,604) (484,085) 

  
 

 
Receipts 

 
 

 
GST receipts on sales  1,916 25,628 
GST receipts from taxation authority  276,569 270,656 

Other receipts 
 

84,382 221,302 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities 23 (15,411,010) (15,770,505) 

  
 

 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

 
 

 
Payments 

 
 

 
Purchase of non-current physical assets  (152,134) (351,775) 

Receipts 
 

 
 

Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets 
 

- 55,100 
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing activities  (152,134) (296,675) 
    
    
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  (544,145) (2,081,180) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period  1,253,960 3,335,140 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 
PERIOD 23 709,815 1,253,960 

The Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
Environmental Impact 

Assessment and 
Policies 

Environmental 
Compliance Audits 

Total 

 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 
$ $ $ $ $ $ 

COST OF SERVICES       
Expenses        
Employee benefits 
expense 10,603,889 10,860,892 1,464,994 1,488,887 12,068,882 12,349,779 

Supplies and services 2,828,070 4,102,315 384,182 417,024 3,212,253 4,519,339 
Depreciation and 
amortisation expense 175,778 109,405 26,266 10,581 202,044 119,986 

Grants and subsidies 109,000 50,000 1,000 - 110,000 50,000 
Other expenses  394,568 397,701 55,450 76,198 450,018 473,899 
Total cost of services 14,111,305 15,520,313 1,931,892 1,992,690 16,043,197 17,513,003 
       

Income        
Other revenue 73,489 194,415 14,181 26,887 87,670 221,302 
Gain on disposal of non-
current assets - 45,759 - - - 45,759 

Total income other than 
income from State 
Government  

73,489 240,174 14,181 26,887 87,670 267,061 

NET COST OF SERVICES 14,037,816 15,280,140 1,917,711 1,965,802 15,955,527 17,245,942 

 
      

INCOME FROM STATE 
GOVERNMENT       

Service appropriation 12,643,710 12,373,983 1,889,290 1,594,017 14,533,000 13,968,000 
Services received free of 
charge 

87,125 676,165 13,019 83,571 100,144 759,736 

Royalties for Regions Fund 390,000 - - - 390,000 - 
Total income from State 
Government 13,120,835 13,050,148 1,902,309 1,677,588 15,023,144 14,727,736 

SURPLUS/DEFICIT 
FOR THE PERIOD (916,981) (2,229,992) (15,402) (288,214) (932,383) (2,518,206) 

  



Home | Contents | Overview | Agency performance | Disclosures and legal compliance | Appendices 

 

Office of the Environmental Protection Authority Annual Report 2013-2014 57 

 

Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service 
As at 30 June 2014 

 
Environmental Impact 

Assessment and 
Policies 

Environmental 
Compliance Audits 

Total 

 
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013 

 
$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Assets       
Current assets 579,953 1,267,248 58,594 89,143 638,547 1,356,391 
Non-current assets 1,168,668 1,248,517 166,446 145,223 1,335,114 1,393,740 
Total assets 1,748,621 2,515,765 225,040 234,366 1,973,661 2,750,131 

 
      

Liabilities       
Current liabilities 2,598,837 2,356,921 388,332 291,305 2,987,169 2,648,226 
Non-current liabilities 707,924 887,095 105,782 109,641 813,706 996,736 
Total liabilities 3,306,761 3,244,016 494,114 400,946 3,800,875 3,644,962 

           
NET ASSETS (1,558,140) (728,251) (269,074) (166,580) (1,827,214) (894,831) 

The Schedule of Assets and Liabilities by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. 
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Summary of Consolidated Account Appropriations and Income Estimates 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

 
2014 

Estimate 
2014 

Actual Variance 2014 
Actual 

2013 
Actual Variance 

 
$ $ $ $ $ $ 

Delivery of Services       
Item 106 Net amount 
appropriated to deliver 
services 9,732,000 14,533,000 4,801,000 14,533,000 13,968,000 565,000 
Total appropriations 
provided to deliver 
services 9,732,000 14,533,000 4,801,000 14,533,000 13,968,000 565,000 

 
      

Capital       
Capital appropriations - - - - 68,000 68,000 

 
      

GRAND TOTAL 9,732,000 14,533,000 4,801,000 14,533,000 14,036,000 497,000 
       

Details of Expenses by 
Service      

 

Environmental Impact 
Assessment and 
Policies 13,070,000 14,111,305 (1,041,305) 14,111,305 15,520,313 (1,409,008) 
Environmental 
Compliance 2,202,000 1,931,892 270,108 1,931,892 1,992,689 60,797 
Total Cost of Services 15,272,000 16,043,197 (771,197) 16,043,197 17,513,002 (1,469,805) 
Less Total Income (4,600,000) (87,670) (4,512,330) (87,670) (267,061) 179,391 
Net Cost of Services 10,672,000 15,955,527 (5,283,527) 15,955,527 17,245,941 (1,290,413) 
Adjustments (940,000) (1,422,527) 482,527 (1,422,527) (3,277,941) (4,700,469) 
Total appropriations 
provided to deliver 
services 9,732,000 14,533,000 (4,801,000) 14,533,000 13,968,000 565,000 

       
Capital Expenditure       
Purchase of non-current 
physical assets 146,000 152,134 (6134) 152,134 351,775 (199,641) 
Adjustments for other 
funding sources (146,000) (152,134) 6134 (152,134) (261,775) 109,641 
Capital appropriations - - - - 68,000 (68,000) 

Adjustments comprise movements in cash balances and other accrual items such as receivables, payables 
and superannuation. 

Note 27 ’Explanatory statement’ provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual 
results for 2014 and between the actual results for 2014 and 2013. 
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Notes to the Financial Statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2014 

Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards 

General 

The Department’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2014 have been 
prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian 
Accounting Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB). 

The Department has adopted any applicable new and revised Australian Accounting 
Standards from their operative dates. 

Early adoption of standards 

The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements.  There has been no early adoption of Australian Accounting 
Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative) by the Department for 
the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2014. 

Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies 

(a) General statement 

The Department is a not-for-profit reporting entity that prepares general purpose 
financial statements in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, the 
Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative 
pronouncements of the AASB as applied by the Treasurer's instructions.  Several of 
these are modified by the Treasurer's instructions to vary application, disclosure, format 
and wording. 

The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer's instructions impose legislative 
provisions that govern the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over 
Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts 
and other authoritative pronouncements of the AASB. 

Where modification is required and has had a material or significant financial effect upon 
the reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are 
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. 

(b) Basis of preparation 

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using 
the historical cost convention. 

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have 
been consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated. 
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The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded 
to the nearest dollar ($). 

There are no judgements made in the process of applying the Department’s accounting 
policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial 
statements. 

Note 3 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made 
concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the 
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the 
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 

(c) Reporting entity 

Mission 

The Department's mission is to support the work of the EPA by providing rigorous 
environmental impact assessment advice and policies, and to undertake effective 
compliance audits. 

The Department is predominantly funded by Parliamentary appropriations.  It does not 
provide services on a fee-for-service basis.  The financial statements encompass all 
funds through which the Department controls resources to carry on its functions. 

Services 

The Department provides the following services: 

Service 1: Environmental Impact Assessment and Policies 

Manage the environmental impact assessment process and coordinate the development 
of policy for the Environmental Protection Authority to enable sound environmental 
advice to be provided to the Government, developers and the public in accordance with 
statutory functions. 

Service 2: Environmental Compliance Audits 

Audit the compliance with conditions set under Ministerial approvals and undertake 
enforcement action as appropriate. 

(d) Contributed equity 

AASB Interpretation 1038 Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public 
Sector Entities requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a 
result of a restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the 
Government (the owner) as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) 
before such transfers can be recognised as equity contributions.  Capital appropriations 
have been designated as contributions by owners by TI 955 Contributions by Owners 
made to Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to 
Contributed equity. 
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The transfers of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure 
of administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the 
transfers are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal. 

(e) Income 

Revenue recognition 

Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or 
receivable.  Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows: 

Service appropriations 

Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which 
the Department gains control of the appropriated funds.  The Department gains control 
of appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or 
credited to the ‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding account) held at Treasury. 

Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions 

Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Department obtains control over the 
assets comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received. 

Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised 
at their fair value.  Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can 
be reliably determined and the services would be purchased if not donated. 

Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in 
which the Department obtains control over the funds.  The Department obtains control of 
the funds at the time the funds are deposited into the Department’s bank account. 

Gains 

Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis.  These include 
gains arising on the disposal of non-current assets. 

(f) Plant and equipment 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Items of plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and the 
cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives.  Items of plant 
and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the 
Statement of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of 
similar items which are significant in total). 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost. 

For items of plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is the 
fair value at the date of acquisition. 

Subsequent measurement 
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Subsequent to initial recognition of an asset, historical cost is used for all plant and 
equipment. All items of plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Derecognition 

Upon disposal or derecognition of an item of plant and equipment, any gain or loss is 
shown in the statement of Comprehensive Income. 

Depreciation 

All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over 
their estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future 
economic benefits. 

Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed 
annually.  Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are: 

Other plant and equipment  5 to 20 years 

Information Technology  3 to 4 years 

Marine equipment  3 to 10 years 

(g) Intangible assets 

Capitalisation/expensing of assets 

Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated 
intangible assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the 
assets is expensed (amortised) over their useful lives. Costs incurred below these 
thresholds are immediately expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for 
nominal cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition. 

The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. 

Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the 
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line 
basis. All intangible assets controlled by the Department have a finite useful life and 
zero residual value. 

The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are: 

Software(a)  3 to 5 years 

(a)  Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware. 
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Computer software 

Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as plant and 
equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is recognised as 
an intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of 
acquisition. 

(h) Impairment of assets 

Plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment at 
the end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the 
recoverable amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the 
carrying amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to the 
recoverable amount and an impairment loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at 
cost is written down to recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in profit or 
loss. As the Department is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been identified as 
a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs 
to sell and depreciated replacement cost. 

The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s 
depreciation is materially understated, where the replacement cost is falling or where 
there is a significant change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed 
annually to verify that the accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of 
consumption or expiration of the asset’s future economic benefits and to evaluate any 
impairment risk from falling replacement costs. 

(i) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale 

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) held for sale are recognised at the lower of 
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, and are disclosed separately from other 
assets in the Statement of Financial Position. Assets classified as held for sale are not 
depreciated or amortised. 

The Department has no assets classified as held for sale. 

(j) Leases 

The Department holds an operating lease for vehicles. Operating leases are expensed 
on a straight line basis over the lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits 
derived from the leased properties. 

(k) Financial instruments 

In addition to cash, the Department has two categories of financial instrument: 

• Receivables; and 

• Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost. 
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Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes: 

• Financial Assets 
 Cash and cash equivalents 
 Restricted cash and cash 

equivalents 
 Receivables 
 Amounts receivable for services 

• Financial Liabilities 
 Payables 

 

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which 
normally equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is 
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face 
value because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not 
required as the effect of discounting is not material. 

(l) Cash and cash equivalents 

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and 
restricted cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term 
deposits with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a 
known amount of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. 

(m) Accrued salaries 

Accrued salaries (see note 20 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid 
at the end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the 
financial year end.  The Department considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries 
to be equivalent to its fair value. 

The accrued salaries suspense account (See note 13 ‘Restricted cash and cash 
equivalents’) consists of amounts paid annually into a suspense account over a period 
of 10 financial years to largely meet the additional cash outflow in each eleventh year 
when 27 pay days occur instead of the normal 26. No interest is received on this 
account. 

(n) Amounts receivable for services (holding account) 

The Department receives funding on an accrual basis. The appropriations are paid 
partly in cash and partly as an asset (holding account receivable). The accrued amount 
receivable is accessible on the emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover 
leave entitlements and asset replacement. 

(o) Receivables 

Receivables are recognised at original invoice amount less an allowance for any 
uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on 
an ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against 
the allowance account. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is 
raised when there is objective evidence that the Department will not be able to collect 
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the debts. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement 
within 30 days. 

(p) Payables 

Payables are recognised at the amounts payable when the Department becomes 
obliged to make future payments as a result of a purchase of assets or services. The 
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as settlement is generally within 30 days. 

(q) Provisions 

Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing or amount and are recognised where there is 
a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the 
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate 
can be made of the amount of the obligation.  Provisions are reviewed at the end of 
each reporting period. 

Provisions - employee benefits 

All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees’ services 
up to the end of the reporting period. 

Annual leave 

The liability for annual leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after the end 
of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted amounts 
expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

Annual leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected 
to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply 
at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future 
wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 
superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that 
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Authority does not 
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period. 

Long service leave 

The liability for long service leave that is expected to be settled within 12 months after 
the end of the reporting period is recognised and measured at the undiscounted 
amounts expected to be paid when the liability is settled. 

Long service leave that is not expected to be settled within 12 months after the end of 
the reporting period is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts 
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expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected 
to apply at the time of settlement. 

When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future 
wage and salary levels including non-salary components such as employer 
superannuation contributions, as well as the experience of employee departures and 
periods of service. The expected future payments are discounted using market yields at 
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity that 
match, as closely as possible, the estimated future cash outflows. 

Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the 
Department does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at 
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period. Pre-conditional and conditional 
long service leave provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the 
Department has an unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the 
employee has completed the requisite years of service. 

Purchased leave 

The provision for purchased leave relates to Public Service employees who have 
entered into an agreement to self-fund up to an additional 10 weeks leave per calendar 
year.  The provision recognises the value of salary set aside for employees and is 
measured at the undiscounted amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are 
settled. 

Superannuation 

The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) and other fund providers 
administer public sector superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in 
accordance with legislative requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular 
schemes for public sector employees vary according to commencement and 
implementation dates. 

Eligible employees contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme 
closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), 
a defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995. 

Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of 
either the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West 
State Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 
16 April 2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 
30 March 2012, existing members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees have 
been able to choose their preferred superannuation fund provider. The Department 
makes contributions to GESB or other fund provider on behalf of employees in 
compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation Guarantee 
(Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish the 
Department’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not 
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS. 

The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-
government reporting. However, it is a defined contribution plan for agency purposes 
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because the concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Department to 
GESB extinguishes the agency’s obligations to the related superannuation liability. 

The Department has no liabilities under the Pension Scheme or the GSS. The liabilities 
for the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS transfer benefits attributable 
to members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. 
All other GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the 
Department to the GESB. 

The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension Scheme and GSS, and 
is recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share. 

Provisions – other 

Employment on-costs 

Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee 
benefits and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the 
employment to which they relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as 
part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not included as part of the Department’s ‘Employee 
benefits expense’. The related liability is included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’. 

(u) Superannuation expense 

The superannuation expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income comprises of 
employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions), the WSS, the 
GESBS, or other superannuation funds. The employer contribution paid to the GESB in 
respect of the GSS is paid back into the Consolidated Account by the GESB. 

(v) Assets and services received free of charge or for nominal cost 

Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost are recognised as income 
at the fair value of the assets and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably 
measured and the Authority would otherwise pay for. A corresponding expense is 
recognised for services received. Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of 
Financial Position. 

Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately 
disclosed under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive 
Income. 

(w) Comparative figures 

Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the 
figures presented in the current financial year. Prior year Restricted Cash has been 
restated to reflect changes to the classification of internally restricted cash.  

Note 3. Key sources of estimation uncertainty 

Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical 
experience and various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. 
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Long Service Leave 

Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Department’s long service 
leave provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention 
rates and expected future payments.  Changes in these estimations and assumptions 
may impact on the carrying amount of the long service leave provision. 

Note 4.  Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates 

Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard 

The Department has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective for 
annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2013 that impacted the Authority. 

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement 

This Standard defines fair value, sets out a framework for measuring 
fair value and required additional disclosures for assets and liabilities 
measured at fair value. There is no financial impact. 

AASB 119 Employee Benefits 

This Standard supersedes AASB 119 (October 2010), making changes 
to the recognition, presentation and disclosure requirements. 

The Department assessed employee leave patterns to determine 
whether annual leave is a short-term or other long-term employee 
benefit. The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities that were 
previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not material. 

AASB 1048 Interpretation of Standards 

This Standard supersedes AASB 1048 (June 2012), enabling 
references to the Interpretations in all other Standards to be updated 
by reissuing the service Standard. There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2011-
8 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
13 [AASB 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 7, 9, 2009-11, 2010-7, 101, 102, 108, 110, 116, 
117, 118, 119, 120, 121, 128, 131, 132, 133, 134, 136, 138, 140, 141, 
1004, 1023 &1038 and Int 2, 4, 12, 13, 14, 17, 19, 131 &132] 

This Standard replaces the existing definition and fair value guidance 
in other Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as the 
result of issuing AASB 13 in September 2011. There is no financial 
impact. 

  



Home | Contents | Overview | Agency performance | Disclosures and legal compliance | Appendices 

 

Office of the Environmental Protection Authority Annual Report 2013-2014 69 

 

AASB 2011-
10 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from AASB 
119(September 2011)[AASB 1, 8, 101, 124, 134, 1049 & 2011-8 and 
Int 14] 

This Standard makes amendments to other Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 119 in 
September 2011.  The resultant discounting of annual leave liabilities 
that were previously measured at the undiscounted amounts is not 
material. 

AASB 2012-
2 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Disclosures – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities [AASB 7 & 132] 

This Standard amends the required disclosures in AASB 7 to include 
information that will enable users of an entity’s financial statements to 
evaluate the effect or potential effect of netting arrangements, 
including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s recognised 
financial assets and recognised financial liabilities, on the entity’s 
financial position. There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2012-
5 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from Annual 
Improvements 2009-11 Cycle [AASB 1, 101, 116, 132 & 134 and Int 2] 

This Standard makes amendments to the Australian Accounting 
Standards and Interpretations as a consequence of the annual 
improvements process. There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2012-
6 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Mandatory 
Effective Date of AASB 9 and Transition Disclosures [AASB 9, 2009-
11, 2010-7, 2011-7 & 2011-8] 

This Standard amends the mandatory effective date of AASB 9 
Financial instruments to 1 January 2015 (instead of 1 January 2013). 
Further amendments are also made to numerous consequential 
amendments arising from AASB 9 that will now apply from 1 January 
2015. There is no financial impact. 

AASB 2012-
9 

Amendment to AASB 1048 arising from the Withdrawal of Australian 
Int 1039 

The withdrawal of Int 1039 Substantive Enactment of Major Tax Bills 
in Australia has no financial impact for the Department during the 
reporting period and at balance date. Measurement of tax assets and 
liabilities continues to be measured in accordance with enacted or 
substantively enacted tax law pursuant to AASB 112.46-47. 

AASB 2012-
10 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Transition 
Guidance and Other Amendments [AASB 1, 5, 7, 8, 10, 11, 12, 13, 
101, 102, 108, 112, 118, 119, 127, 128, 132, 133, 134, 137, 1023, 
1038, 1039, 1049 & 2011-7 and Int 12] 

The Standard introduces a number of editorial alterations and amends 
the mandatory application date of Standards for not for profit entities 
accounting for interests in other entities. There is no financial impact. 
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AASB 2013-
9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Conceptual 
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments. 

Part A of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other 
Standards arising from revisions to the Australian Accounting 
Conceptual Framework for periods ending on or after 20 December 
2013. Other Parts of this Standard become operative in later periods. 
There is no financial impact for Part A of the Standard. 

Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative 

The Department cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless 
specifically permitted by TI 1101 Application of Australian Accounting Standards and 
Other Pronouncements. Consequently, the Department has not applied early any of 
the following Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued that may impact 
the Authority. Where applicable, the Authority plans to apply these Australian 
Accounting Standards from their application date. 

  Operative 
for 
reporting 
periods 
beginning 
on/after 

Int 21 Levies 
This Interpretation clarifies the circumstances under 
which a liability to pay a government levy imposed should 
be recognised. There is no financial impact for the 
Department at reporting date. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 9 Financial Instruments 
This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial 
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing 
a number of changes to accounting treatments. 
The mandatory application date of this Standard was 
amended to 1 January 2017. The Department has not yet 
determined the application or the potential impact of the 
Standard. 

1 Jan 2017 

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements 
and Int 112 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities, 
introducing a number of changes to accounting 
treatments. 
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for 
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10 Amendments to 
Australian Accounting Standards – Transition Guidance 
and Other Amendments. The adoption of the new 
Standard has no financial impact for the Department as it 
doesn’t impact accounting for related bodies and the 
Department has no interests in other entities. 

1 Jan 2014 
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AASB 11 Joint Arrangements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 
131 Interests in Joint Ventures, introduces new principles 
for determining the type of joint arrangement that exists, 
which are more aligned to the actual rights and 
obligations of the parties to the arrangement.  
Mandatory application of this Standard was deferred for 
not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no 
financial impact for the Department as the new standard 
continues to require the recognition of the Department’s 
share of assets and share of liabilities for the 
unincorporated joint operation. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes 
disclosure requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements, AASB 128 Investments 
in Associates and AASB 131 Interests in Joint Ventures. 
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit 
entities by AASB 2012-10. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 
 

AASB 127 Separate Financial Statements 
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 
127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, 
removing the consolidation requirements of the earlier 
standard whilst retaining accounting and disclosure 
requirements for the preparation of separate financial 
statements. Mandatory application was deferred by one 
year for not-for-profit entities by AASB 2012-10. There is 
no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 128 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 
This Standard, issued in August 2011 supersedes AASB 
128 Investments in Associates, introducing a number of 
clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed 
ownership interest.  
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit 
entities by AASB 2012-10. The adoption of the new 
Standard has no financial impact for the Department as it 
does not hold investments in associates and the 
accounting treatments for joint operations is consistent 
with current practice. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 1031 Materiality 
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), 
removing Australian guidance on materiality that is not 
available in IFRSs and refers to other Australian 
pronouncements that contain guidance on materiality. 
There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 1055 Budgetary Reporting 
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in 
the financial statements of not for profit entities within the 
General Government Sector. The Department will be 
required to disclose additional budgetary information and 
explanations of major variances between actual and 

1 Jul 2014 
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budgeted amounts, though there is no financial impact. 
AASB 
2009-11 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 102, 108, 112, 
118, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 139, 1023 & 1038 and 
Int 10 & 12]  
[modified by AASB 2010-7] 

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 
2010-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101, 
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136, 
137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]  
This Standard makes consequential amendments to 
other Australian Accounting Standards and 
Interpretations as a result of issuing AASB 9 in 
December 2010. The Department has not yet determined 
the application or the potential impact of the Standard.  

1 Jan 2015 

AASB 
2011-7 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising 
from the Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards [AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101, 107, 112, 118, 121, 
124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5, 9, 
16 & 17] 
This Standard gives effect to consequential changes 
arising from the issue of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 
Separate Financial Statements and AASB 128 
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. 
Mandatory application was deferred for not-for-profit 
entities by AASB 2012-10. The Department has analysed 
the suite of Consolidation and Joint Arrangements 
Standards and determined that no financial impact arises 
from adopting the various Standards. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 
2012-3 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities 
[AASB 132] 
This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to 
address inconsistencies identified in applying some of 
the offsetting criteria, including clarifying the meaning of 
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off” and 
that some gross settlement systems may be considered 
equivalent to net settlement.  
The Department does not routinely hold financial assets 
and financial liabilities that it intends to settle on a net 
basis, therefore there is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 
2013-3 

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount 
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets 
This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure 
changes. There is no financial impact. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 
2013-4 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – 
Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge 
Accounting [AASB 139] 
This Standard permits the continuation of hedge 
accounting in circumstances where a derivative, which 
has been designated as a hedging instrument, is novated 

1 Jan 2014 
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from one counterparty to a central counterparty as a 
consequence of laws or regulations. The Department 
does not routinely enter into derivatives or hedges, 
therefore there is no financial impact. 

AASB 
2013-8 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - 
Australian Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit 
Entities – Control and Structured Entities [AASB 10, 12 & 
1049].  
The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide 
significant guidance in determining whether a not-for-
profit entity controls another entity when financial returns 
are not key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The 
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather 
the impact results from the adoption of the amended 
AASB 10. 

1 Jan 2014 

AASB 
2013-9 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards - 
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial 
Instruments. 
This omnibus Standard makes amendments to other 
Standards arising from the deletion of references to 
AASB 1031 in other Standards for periods beginning on 
or after 1 January 2014 (Part B), and, defers the 
application of AASB 9 to 1 January 2017 (Part C). The 
Authority has not yet determined the application or the 
potential impact of AASB 9, otherwise there is no 
financial impact for Part B. 

1 Jan 2014 
1 Jan 2017 
 

AASB 
2014-1 

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards. 
The Department has not yet determined the application 
or potential impact of the Standard. 

1 July 2014 
1 Jan 2015 
1 Jun 2016 
1 Jan 2018 

Note 5. Employee benefits expense 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Wages and salaries(a) 11,006,581 11,370,009 
Superannuation – defined contribution plans(b) 1,062,301 979,770 
 12,068,882 12,349,779 

(a) Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax 
component, leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component. 

(b) Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State, GESB and other 
eligible funds. 

Employment on-costs expenses, such as workers’ compensation insurance, are 
included at note 9 ‘Other expenses’. 

Employment on-costs liability is included at note 21 ‘Provisions’.  
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Note 6. Supplies and services 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Communications 155,333 129,551 
Consultants and contractors(a) 2,775,086 3,933,770 
Consumables 137,521 79,967 
Travel 71,108 80,350 
Other 73,205 295,701 
 3,212,253 4,519,339 

Services are supplied by the Department of Parks and Wildlife ($670,000) and 
Department of Environmental Regulation ($940,000), under Agreements, for some 
corporate services. 

Note 7. Depreciation and amortisation expense 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Depreciation   
Information technology assets 31,413 17,164 
Marine equipment 56,178 62,486 
Other plant and equipment 12,602 4,362 
Total depreciation 100,193 84,012 
Amortisation   
Computer software 101,851 35,974 
Total amortisation 101,851 35,974 
Total depreciation and amortisation 202,044 119,986 

Note 8. Grants and subsidies 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Strategic Assessment Perth and Peel Regions 100,000 - 
ARC-Linkage Project (Aquifer Ecosystems) 10,000 - 
WA Biodiversity Research Institute - 50,000 
 110,000 50,000 
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Note 9. Other expenses 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Audit fees(a) 47,508 2,600 
Employment on-costs(b) 41,518 53,269 
Other employment costs 208,340 251,298 
Lease costs 121,400 102,969 
Repairs and Maintenance 31,252 63,763 
 450,018 473,899 

(a) 2012–13 audit fees was lower to rectify the recognition timing of service provided. 
Audit fees are no longer accrued and recognised in the year the service is paid. 
Also see note 30 ‘Remuneration of auditor’. 

(b) Includes workers compensation insurance and other employment on-costs 

Note 10. Other revenue 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Cost recoup for site visits, audits and administration 87,670 221,302 
 87,670 221,302 

Note 11. Net gain on disposal of non-current assets 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets   
Marine equipment - 55,100 
   
Costs of disposal of non-current assets   
Marine equipment - (9,341) 
Net gain - 45,759 
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Note 12. Income from State Government 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Appropriation received during the period:   
Service appropriation(a) 14,533,000 13,968,000 
 14,533,000 13,968,000 
   
Services received free of charge from other State 
government agencies during the period:   
Department of Environment and Conservation - 535,000 
State Solicitor’s Office 100,144 224,736 
 100,144 759,736 
Royalties for Regions Fund:   
Pilbara Cities(b) 390,000 - 
 390,000 - 
 15,023,144 14,727,736 

(a) Service appropriations fund the net cost of services delivered. Appropriation 
revenue comprises a cash component and a receivable (asset). The receivable 
(holding account) comprises the budgeted depreciation expense for the year and 
any agreed increase in leave liabilities during the year. 

(b) This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. The 
recurrent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas. 

Note 13. Restricted cash and cash equivalents 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Current(c)   
Royalties for Regions Fund(a) 187,824 103,072 
 187,824 103,072 
Non-current   
Accrued salaries suspense account(b) 322,771 294,487 
 322,771 294,487 

(a) Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas. 

(b) Funds held in the suspense account for the purpose of meeting the 27th pay in a 
financial year that occurs every 11-year  

(c) Restricted cash projects have been restated in 2012-13 to reflect the 
reclassification of internal projects. 
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Note 14. Receivables 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Current   
Receivables 87,223 158,611 
GST receivable 74,904 85,783 
 162,127 244,394 

The Department does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security 
for receivables. 

Note 15. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account) 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Current   
Asset Replacement 87,000 146,000 
Non-current   
Leave Liability 544,000 581,000 
 631,000 727,000 

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it 
can only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability. 

 

Note 16. Other assets 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Current   
Prepayments 2,376 6,524 
Total current 2,376 6,524 

Note 17. Plant and equipment 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Information technology   
At cost 157,827 173,266 
Accumulated depreciation (56,766) (84,166) 
 101,061 89,100 
Marine equipment   
At cost 288,851 288,851 
Accumulated depreciation (157,218) (101,040) 
 131,633 187,811 
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 2013 
$ 

2014 
$ 

Other plant and equipment   
At cost 101,163 45,116 
Accumulated depreciation (20,347) (7,745) 
 80,816 37,371 
 313,510 314,282 

Reconciliation of plant and equipment 

Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of plant and equipment at the beginning and 
end of the reporting period are set out below. 

 Information 
technology 

 

Marine 
equipment 

 

Other 
plant and 

equipment 

Total 
 

 $ $ $ $ 
2014     
Carrying amount at start of 
period 89,100 187,811 37,371 314,282 
Additions 43,374 - 56,047 99,421 
Depreciation (31,413) (56,178) (12,602) (100,193) 
Carrying amount at end of 
period 101,061 131,633 80,816 313,510 
2013     
Carrying amount at start of 
period 6,962 258,501 13,242 278,705 
Additions 99,302 1,138 28,491 128,931 
Disposal - (9,342) - (9,342) 
Depreciation (17,164) (62,486) (4,362) (84,012) 
Carrying amount at end of 
period 89,100 187,811 37,371 314,282 

Note 18. Intangible assets 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Computer software   
At cost 292,658 239,945 
Accumulated amortisation (137,825) (35,974) 
 154,833 203,971 
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Reconciliations 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Computer software   
Carrying amount at start of period 203,971 17,100 
Additions 52,713 222,845 
Amortisation expense (101,851) (35,974) 
Carrying amount at end of period 154,833 203,971 

Note 19. Impairment of assets 

There were no indications of impairment to plant and equipment or intangible assets at 
30 June 2014. 

The Department held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during 
the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets 
not yet available for use. 

All surplus assets at 30 June 2014 have either been classified as assets held for sale or 
written-off. 

Note 20. Payables 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Current   
Accrued expenses 668,657 173,875 
Accrued salaries 305,459 256,446 
Total current 974,116 430,321 

Note 21. Provisions 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Current   
Employee benefits provision   
Annual leave(a)(c) 651,527 742,397 
Long service leave(b)(c) 1,343,308 1,455,391 
 1,994,835 2,197,788 
Other provisions   
Employment on-costs(d) 18,218 20,117 
 18,218 20,117 
 2,013,053 2,217,905 
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 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Non-current   
Employee benefits provision   
Long service leave(b)(c) 806,342 987,695 
 806,342 987,695 
Other provisions   
Employment on-costs(d) 7,364 9,041 
 7,364 9,041 
 813,706 996,736 

(a) Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional 
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.  
Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is expected to occur as 
follows: 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 379,999 600,886 
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period 

271,528 141,511 

 651,527 742,397 

(b) Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no 
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the end of the 
reporting period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities is 
expected to occur as follows: 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period 701,182 450,462 
More than 12 months after the end of the reporting 
period 642,126 1,004,929 

 1,343,308 1,455,391 

(c) The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities gives rise to the payment 
of employment on-costs including workers’ compensation insurance.  The provision 
is the present value of expected future payments. 

(d) The associated expense is disclosed in note 9 ‘Other expenses’. 
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Movements in other provisions 

Movements in each class of provisions during the period, other than employee benefits, 
are set out below. 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Employment on-cost provision   
Carrying amount at start of period 29,158 20,997 
Additional/(reversals of) provisions recognised (3,576) 8,161 
Carrying amount at end of period 25,582 29,158 

Note 22. Equity 

Liabilities exceed assets for the Department and therefore there is no residual interest in 
the assets of the Department. This equity deficit arose through expenses such as 
depreciation and accrual of employee entitlements for leave not involving the payment of 
cash in the current period being recognised in the Statement of Financial Position. 

Contributed equity 
 2014 

$ 
2013 

$ 
Balance at start of period 443,675 375,675 
   
Contributions by owners   
Capital appropriation - 68,000 
   
Balance at end of period 443,675 443,675 
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)   
Balance at start of period (1,338,506) 1,179,700 
Result for the period (932,383) (2,518,206) 
   
Balance at end of period (2,270,889) (1,338,506) 
Total Equity at end of period (1,827,214) (894,831) 
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Note 23. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows 

Reconciliation of cash 

Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is 
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows: 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Cash and cash equivalents 199,220 856,401 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents (note 13 ‘Restricted 
cash and cash equivalents’)  

510,595 
 

397,559 
 709,815 1,253,960 

Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided 
by/(used in) operating activities 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Net cost of services (15,955,527) (17,245,942) 
   
Non-cash items   
Depreciation and amortisation expense (note 7 
‘Depreciation and amortisation expense’) 202,044 119,986 
Services received free of charge (note 13 ‘Income from 
State Government’) 100,144 759,736 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and 
equipment (note 11 ‘Net gain/(loss) on disposal of non-
current assets') - 

 
45,759        

Adjustment for other non-cash items - (5,736) 
   
(Increase)/decrease in assets   
Current receivables 71,388 (83,973) 
Other current assets 4,148 15,329 
   
Increase/(decrease) in liabilities   
Current payables 543,795 97,220 
Current provisions (204,852) 364,813 
Non-current provisions (183,030) 283,608 
Net GST receipts/(payments)(a) 62,423 (85,783) 
Change in GST in receivables/payables(b) (51,543) (35,522) 
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating activities (15,411,010) (15,770,505) 

(a) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions. 

(b) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables 
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Note 24. Commitments 

Non-cancellable operating lease commitments  

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Commitments for minimum lease payments are payable 
as follows: 

  

Within 1 year 46,296 38,320 
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years 33,585 40,446 
 79,881 78,766 

The Department has non-cancellable operating vehicle lease commitments. The lease 
terms vary dependent upon the vehicle and are for fixed terms payable monthly. The 
commitments are inclusive of GST. 

Note 25. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets 

The Department has no contingent liabilities or contingent asserts as at 30 June 2014. 

Note 26. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period 

No events have occurred after the end of the reporting period which would materially 
impact on the financial statements. 

Note 27. Explanatory statement 

Significant variations between estimates and actual results for income and expense as 
presented in the financial statement titled ‘Summary of Consolidated Account 
Appropriations and Income Estimates’ are shown below. Significant variations are 
considered to be those greater than 10% or $200,000. 

Total appropriations provided to deliver services 

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2014 
 2014 

Estimate 
$ 

2014 
Actual 

$ 

Variance 
$ 

Appropriation provided to deliver services 9,732,000 14,533,000 4,801,000 (a) 
Total income 4,600,000 87,860 (4,512,330) b) 

(a) Appropriations were increased as Cost Recovery measures were not introduced as 
provided for in the original budget estimates. 

(b) Estimated income from cost recovery was not received. 
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Significant variances between actual results for 2014 and 2013 
 2014  

$ 
2013 

$ 
Variance 

$ 
Appropriation provided to deliver services 14,533,000 13,986,000 565,000(a) 
Other revenue 87,670 267,061 (179,391) (b) 

(a) Additional appropriation was received to provide for infrastructure to assist in 
bringing Financial Management functions in-house that will provide for future budget 
savings. 

(b) Revenue consists mainly of recoup of costs for site visits and expenses and varies 
according to the activities associated with Environmental Assessment. Previous 
year included asset sale. 

Service Expenditure 

Significant variances between estimate and actual for 2014 
 2014 

Estimate 
$ 

2014 
Actual 

$ 

Variance 
$ 

Environmental Impact Assessment and 
Policies 

13,070,000 14,111,306 (1,041,305)(a) 

Environmental Compliance Audits 2,202,000 1,931,892 270,108 (b) 

(a) Increased expenditure reflects the improvements to the Information Technology 
infrastructure associated with the Case Management System being developed to 
improve the Environmental Impact Assessment process. 

(b) Efficiencies were introduced to streamline the compliance processes. 

Significant variances between actual results for 2014 and 2013 
 2014  

$ 
2013 

$ 
Variance 

$ 
Environmental Impact Assessment and 
Policies 14,111,306 15,520,313 (1,409,182) (a) 

(a) A significant amount of progress has been achieved in the reform of the Information 
Systems used to assist in the Environmental Impact Assessment processes. This 
was achieved by the setup of information technology infrastructure in 2013 to 
provide a separate OEPA information network for a Case Management System 
being developed. 

Capital contribution 

Significant variances between actual results for 2014 and 2013 
 2014  

$ 
2013 

$ 
Variance 

$ 
Capital contribution - 68,000 (68,000)(a) 

(a) The capital contribution via drawdowns was to provide essential computing 
equipment to assist in the implementation of improved assessment process. 
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Note 28.  Financial instruments 

(a) Financial risk management objectives and policies 

Financial instruments held by the Department are cash and cash equivalents, restricted 
cash and cash equivalents, receivables and payables. The Department has limited 
exposure to financial risks. The Department’s overall risk management program focuses 
on managing the risks identified below. 

Credit risk 

Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Department’s receivables defaulting 
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Department. 

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to 
each class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets 
inclusive of any allowance for impairment as shown in the table at note 28(c) ‘Financial 
instruments disclosures’ and note 14 ‘Receivables’. 

Credit risk associated with the Department’s financial assets is minimal because the 
main receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding account). For 
receivables other than government, the Department trades only with recognised, 
creditworthy third parties. The Department has policies in place to ensure that sales of 
products and services are made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In 
addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the 
Department’s exposure to bad debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there 
were no significant concentrations of credit risk. 

Liquidity risk 

Liquidity risk arises when the Department is unable to meet its financial obligations as 
they fall due. 

The Department is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of 
business. 

The Department has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown 
of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are 
available to meet its commitments. 

Market risk 

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and 
interest rates will affect the Department’s income or the value of its holdings of financial 
instruments. The Department does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially 
exposed to other price risks. 
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(b) Categories of financial instruments 

The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and 
financial liabilities at the end of the reporting period are: 

 2014 
$000 

2013 
$000 

Financial Assets   
Cash and cash equivalents 199 856 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 510 398 
Receivables(a) 718 886 
   
Financial Liabilities   
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 974 430 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory 
receivable). 

(c) Financial instrument disclosures 

Credit risk 

The following table details the Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the 
ageing analysis of financial assets. The Department’s maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown 
below. The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not 
impaired and impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to 
senior management of the Department. 

The Department does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancement 
relating to the financial assets it holds. 
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Ageing analysis of financial assets 

 
   Past due but not impaired  
 

Carrying 
Amount 

Not past 
due and 

not 
impaired 

Up to 
1 month 

1-3 
months 

3 
months 

to  
1 year 

1-5 
years 

More 
than 

5 
year

s 

Impaired 
financial 

assets 
 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
2014         
Cash and cash 
equivalents 199 199 

      

Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents 511 511       
Receivables(a) 87  74  13    
Amounts receivable for 
services 631 631       
 1,428 1,341 74  13    
2013         
Cash and cash 
equivalents 856 856 

      

Restricted cash and 
cash equivalents 398 398 

      

Receivables(a) 159  157 2     
Amounts receivable for 
services 727 727 

      

 2,140 1,981 157 2     

 

(a) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure 

The following table details the Department’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial 
liabilities. The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows.  The interest rate exposure section analyses only the 
carrying amounts of each item. 

Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities 

   Interest rate exposure (Nil)   Maturity dates 
 Weighted 

Average 
Effective 

Interest Rate 
Carrying 
Amount 

Non-
interest 
bearing 

Nominal 
Amount 

Up to 
1 month 

1-3 
months 

3 months to 
1 year 1-5 years More than 5 years 

 % $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 
2014          
Financial Assets          
Cash and cash equivalents  199 199 199 199     
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  511 511 511 511     
Receivables(a)  87 87 87 74  13   
Amounts receivable for services  631 631 631 -  87  544 
  1,428 1,428 1,428 784  100  544 
Financial Liabilities          
Payables  974 974 974 974     
  974 974 974 974     
2013          
Financial Assets          
Cash and cash equivalents  856 856 856 856     
Restricted cash and cash equivalents  398 398 398 398     
Receivables(a)  159 159 159 157 2    
Amounts receivable for services  727 727 727   146 137 444 
  2,140 2,140 2,140 1,411 2 146 137 444 
Financial Liabilities          
Payables  430 430 430 430     
  430 430 430 430     

(b) The amount of receivables excludes the GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable). 
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Note 29. Remuneration of senior officers  

The number of senior officers whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary 
benefits and other benefits for the financial year fall within the following bands are: 

$ 2014 2013 
100,001 – 150,000 1 1 
150,001 – 200,000 2 3 
200,001 – 250,000 - - 
250,001 – 300,000 - - 
300,001 – 350,000 1 1 
 $ $ 
Base remuneration and superannuation 816,612 969,812 
Annual leave and long service leave accruals (21,053) (49,905) 
Other benefits 36,363 69,930 
Total remuneration of senior officers 831,922 989,837 

The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the 
Department in respect of senior officers. 

Note 30. Remuneration of auditor  

Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the 
current financial year is as follows: 

 2014 
$ 

2013 
$ 

Auditing the accounts, financial statements and key 
performance indicators 28,200 29,000 

Note 31. Related and affiliated bodies 

The Department does not provide any assistance to other agencies which would deem 
them to be regarded as related or affiliated bodies under the definitions included in 
Treasurers Instruction 951. 

Note 32. Supplementary financial information 

(a) Write-offs 
The Department did not write off any bad debts, revenue, debts due to the State, 
public or other property during the financial Year, (2013: nil). 

(b) Losses through theft, defaults and other causes 
The Department had no losses through theft, defaults and other causes during the 
financial year. (2013: nil). 

(c) Gifts of public property 
The Department had no gifts of public property during the financial year. (2013: nil).  
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Key Performance Indicators  

Certification of Key Performance Indicators  

For the year ended 30 June 2014  

I hereby certify that the key performance indicators are based on proper records, 
are relevant and appropriate for assisting users to assess the Office of the 
Environmental Protection Authority’s performance, and fairly represent the 
performance of the Office of the Environmental Protection Authority for the 
financial year ended 30 June 2014. 

 

Kim Taylor  

Accountable Authority  

31 July 2014 
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Detailed Key Performance Indicators 
Performance Information 

The Office of the Environmental Protection Authority (OEPA) was established as 
a separate Department in November 2009. The OEPA works to support the 
Government’s goal of ensuring that economic activity is managed in a socially 
and environmentally responsible manner for the long term benefit of the State. 

It supports this goal by working to deliver the desired outcome of an efficient and 
effective environmental assessment and compliance system. 

The OEPA has two key services that contribute to the above outcome and 
against which the Department’s effectiveness and efficiency is reported. 

1. Environmental impact assessment and policies 

2. Environmental compliance audits 

It should be noted that the OEPA’s performance indicators have been under 
review to ensure they are more robust, contemporary and fit for purpose. A 
revised set of services and indicators has been endorsed and is in place for the 
2014–15 financial year. 

Outcomes and Key Effectiveness Indicators 

There are three current effectiveness indicators for the OEPA: 

 

 

     

2010-
11 

Actual 

2011-
12 

Actual 

2012-
13 

Actual 

2013-
14  

Target 

2013-
14 

Actual 

2013-14 
Variance 
of Target 
to Actual 

Variance 
of Actual 
2012-13 

and 
2013-14 

Percentage of approved projects 
with actual impacts not exceeding 
those predicted during the 
assessment  

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 0% 0% 

Percentage of assessments that 
meet agreed initial timelines 82% 80% 81% 80% 88% 8% 7% 

Percentage of audited projects 
where all environmental conditions 
have been met 

58% 87% 84% 80% 87% 7% 3% 
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Percentage of approved projects with actual impacts not exceeding 
those predicted during the assessment 

 

Accurately predicting likely environmental impacts is essential to the 
development of appropriate conditions for any approval.   

The OEPA assesses the effectiveness of its environmental impact assessments 
by determining the number of times that action needs to be taken beyond routine 
compliance to achieve protection of the environment as specified under 
conditions in an Implementation Statement.   

Such action could relate to the issuing of a notice by the Minister for Environment 
under section 48 (4) of the Environmental Protection Act 1986. 

Explanatory Notes: 

The determination of whether a project has had impacts exceeding those 
predicted during the assessment is based on information from the OEPA audits, 
audits by other government agencies, reports submitted by project proponents 
and from information reported by the public. 

The 2013–14 result of 100 per cent was determined by considering the following 
criteria: 

Orders/notices issued by Minister 

There were no notices issued in 2013–14 by the Minister to prevent, control or 
abate any pollution or environmental harm caused by non-compliance.  

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Target 2013-14 Variance

% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 0.0%
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Percentage of assessments where actual environmental 
impacts have not been found to have seriously exceeded 

predicted impacts 
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Information from OEPA audits 

The 60 audits undertaken by the Compliance Branch in 2013–14 did not result in 
the detection of any projects where environmental impacts were beyond those 
regulated by the Ministerial conditions. 

Audits by other Government agencies 

No advice was received from other Government agencies in 2013–14 indicating 
environmental impacts beyond those regulated by the Ministerial conditions. 

Reports submitted by project proponents 

No reports were received from proponents in 2013–14 indicating environmental 
impacts beyond those regulated by the Ministerial conditions. 

Information reported by the public. 

No information was received from the public in 2013–14 indicating environmental 
impacts beyond those regulated by the Ministerial conditions. 

Percentage of assessments that met agreed initial timelines 

Expected timelines are usually agreed at the time an assessment is commenced 
using Environmental Assessment Guideline No. 6 Timelines for Environmental 
Impact Assessment of Proposal. This graph illustrates the percentage of 
assessments where those agreed timelines have been met at the conclusion of 
the assessment. 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Target 2013-14 Variance

% 82.0% 80.0% 81.0% 80.0% 88.0% 8.0%

0%

20%

40%
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80%
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%
 

Percentage of assessments where agreed initial timelines 
have been met 
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Explanatory Notes: 

Timelines for an assessment may vary according to the complexity of the project 
and are usually agreed with the proponent soon after the level of assessment is 
determined.  

The EPA has adopted a practice of publishing in its assessment report to the 
Minister whether it has met the timeline objective. 

In 2013–14, the OEPA met its timeline objective in 88% per cent of cases. 
Instances where the OEPA did not meet its timeline objective were generally as 
a result of extended consultation with proponents on complex environmental 
matters. 

Percentage of audited projects where all environmental conditions 
have been met 

 

Compliance monitoring is managed through a structured annual Compliance 
Management Program. The program sets out the number of audits to be 
undertaken and using a priority matrix identifies the Ministerial Statements to be 
audited.   

The priority matrix considers: 

• Condition of existing receiving environment. 
• Potential consequence of failed key management actions on environment and 

or human recipients. 
• Environmental Performance. 
• Stakeholder Interest. 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Target 2013-14 Variance

Overall 58% 87% 84% 80% 87% 7.0%

0%

20%

40%

60%

80%

100%

%
 C

om
pl

ia
nc

e 

Percentage of audited projects where all environmental 
conditions have been met 



Home | Contents | Overview | Agency performance | Disclosures and legal compliance | Appendices 

 

Office of the Environmental Protection Authority Annual Report 2013-2014 95 

 

All high priority ranked Statements are audited as part of the Compliance 
Management Program.  

The percentage of audited projects where all environmental conditions have 
been met is determined from the audits of statements within this program. 

Explanatory Notes 

The Priority Matrix incorporates a number of factors to priority rank Ministerial 
Statements. An audit program of statements is developed based on the priority 
ranking. 

Audits consist of a desk top review of all information submitted to demonstrate 
compliance and site audits where more detailed inspection is required to assess 
the compliance status. The “percentage of audited projects where all 
environmental conditions have been met” does not include audits where further 
verification was still required to ascertain the audit finding. 60 audits were 
undertaken in 2013–14 compared to 63 audits during 2012–13. 

Services and Key Efficiency Indicators 

Service 1: Environmental Impact & Assessment Policies 

 

 

2010-11 
Actual 

2011-12 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

2013-14  
Target 

2013-14 
Actual 

2013-14 
Variance 
of Target 
to Actual 

Variance 
of Actual 
2012-13 

and 
2013-14 

Average cost per 
environmental assessment 

$    
39,336 

$    
40,688 

$    
49,327 

$    
42,200 

$    
49,227 

$                      
7,027 

$                    
(100) 

Average cost per 
environmental policy 
developed 

$  
192,162 

$  
120,693 

$  
129,410 

$  
114,287 

$  
125,581 

$                   
11,294 

$              
(3,829) 
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Average cost per environment assessment 

 

Environmental impact assessments and post approval reviews are categorised 
into several groups, depending on the complexity of the assessment or statutory 
process. 

Each group is given a weighting of 1 to 5. 

The average cost is calculated by the total cost of providing the service 
(including overhead costs) by the weighted number of output EIA services 
provided. 

Explanatory notes: 

There can be significant variation in time taken and resources expended on 
individual proposals depending on a variety of factors (scale, experience of the 
proponent, sensitivity of the receiving environment, degree of public interest). 
However, the statutory process and/or level of assessment can serve as a 
general guide. 

Strategic proposals and Public Environmental Reviews attract the highest 
weighting of 5 in view of the fact that they usually attract a high degree of public 
interest, and may be of a scale and complexity that would involve a significant 
investment of officer time by the Department. A recent example is the 
Boddington Gold Mine Expansion proposal. 

Section 48A planning scheme assessments also attract a weighting of 5 because 
they are generally broad scale and involve multiple land uses in areas of high 
biodiversity. 

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Target 2013-14 Variance

$,000 39.3 40.7 49.3 42.2 49.2 7.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

40.0

50.0

60.0
$,

00
0 

Average cost per environment assessment 
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Assessments based on proponent information are generally for more routine 
proposals with fewer environmental factors and as such they attract a weighting 
of 2. 

Section 46 changes to approved Ministerial implementation conditions result in a 
public report by the EPA and attract a weighting of 2. 

Less complex activity includes review of environmental management plans and 
amendments to proposals under s45(c) of the EP Act. These are given a 
weighting of 1. 

Average cost per environmental policy developed 

The OEPA develops environmental protection policies, environmental 
management guidelines and strategic advice for the EPA and for Government.  
Policy and guidelines assist in minimising environmental impacts and protecting 
important parts of the environment. They also provide guidance about the EPA’s 
expectations in relation to environmental impact assessment and assist users of 
the OEPA’s services to navigate the statutory processes.  

Policies, guidelines and strategic advice vary in type. The type of instrument, as 
well as the complexity of the topic, can have a significant bearing on the effort 
involved in its preparation. 

 

Policy development is divided into three categories based upon the type of 
policy, guidance or strategic advice. These are: 

• Maximum complexity (weight 3); 
• Medium complexity (weight 2); and  

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Target 2013-14 Variance

$,000 192.2 120.7 129.4 114.3 125.6 11.3

0.0

50.0

100.0

150.0

200.0

250.0

$,
00

0 

Average cost per policy development 
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• Low complexity (weight 1) 

The average cost is calculated by dividing the total cost of policy, guidance or 
strategic advice by the weighted number of output services provided. 

Explanatory notes 

Only those policies completed, published and/or delivered to the service recipient 
are counted for the purpose of calculating efficiency.  

The policy output is divided into three categories which broadly reflect their 
statutory importance and degree of complexity. 

Statutory and Cabinet endorsed policies and frameworks are given the highest 
weighting of 3 to reflect their relative complexity. Based on judgement and past 
experience, it is assumed these may take an average of 600 and 900 hours to 
complete. 

Strategic advice, guidelines and knowledge services are given a weighting of 2 
to reflect their moderate level of complexity. These may take an average of 300-
600 hours to complete. 

The lowest level of complexity applies to environmental protection bulletins and 
reviews which are given a weighting of 1 to reflect that they take up to 300 hours 
to complete on average. 

Service 2: Environmental Compliance Audits 

 

2010-11 
Actual 

2011-12 
Actual 

2012-13 
Actual 

2013-14  
Target 

2013-14 
Actual 

2013-14 
Variance 
of Target 
to Actual 

Variance 
of Actual 
2012-13 

and 
2013-14 

Average cost per 
environmental audit 
completed 

$    
32,020 

$    
27,594 

$    
34,908 

$    
36,705 

$    
32,198 

$                  
(4,507) 

$              
(2,710) 

 

The average cost of compliance auditing is calculated by dividing the total cost of 
compliance services by the number of audits undertaken. 
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Average cost per environmental audit completed  

Explanatory Notes: 

The target average cost per compliance audit is based on a predicted 60 audits 
being completed during the period. 
  

2010-11 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14
Target 2013-14 Variance

$,000 32.0 34.9 34.9 36.7 32.2 -4.5
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Ministerial directives 

No Ministerial Directives were received during the 2013–14 financial year. 

Other financial disclosures (TI 903) 

Pricing policies of services provided 

The department is fully funded from appropriations and does not charge any fee 
for service. 

Governance disclosures (TI 903) 

Contracts with senior officers 

At the date of reporting, senior officers of the department held no contracts with 
the department other than normal employment contracts. No senior officers of 
the department had substantial interests in entities with existing or proposed 
contracts or agreements with the department. 

Board remuneration 

The OEPA reports the following renumeration to the Environmental Protection 
Authority for 2013–14: 

 

Position Name Type of 
remuneration 

Period of 
membership 

Gross/actual 
remuneration 

Chair Dr Paul Vogel Annual 5/11/2007 – 
4/11/2015 

$419,491 

Deputy 
Chair 

Prof Robert 
Harvey 

Annual 18/11/2012 – 
17/11/2015 

$87,144 

Member Ms Elizabeth Carr Annual 4/10/2011 – 
3/10/2014 

$43,571 

Member Dr Rodney 
Lukatelich 

Annual 31/10/2009 – 
31/10/2014 

$43,571 

Member Mr Glen McLeod Annual 21/10/2013 – 
20/10/2016 

$26,485 

   Total: $620,262 

Remuneration for the Chairman includes superannuation and vehicle expenses. 
Remuneration for the Deputy Chair and Members includes superannuation. 
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Workers Compensation  

There were no compensation claims recorded during the 2013–14 financial year. 

Employment and Industrial Relations 

All OEPA officers are employed under the Public Service and Government 
Officers General Agreement (2011). 

Staff development is undertaken in conjunction with an individual Work and 
Development Plan process that identifies initiatives for work efficiencies and 
effectiveness through improvements and professional development. 

A recent review of positions has re-aligned job roles to facilitate efficiency gains. 

Staff profile 

   2014 2013 

Full-time permanent 77 76 

Full-time contract 5 6 

Part-time measured on an FTE basis 12 18 

On secondment 1 0 

   95 100 

 

Public interest disclosures 
(Public Interest Disclosures Act 2003, S23 (1) (f)) 

The Public Interest Disclosure Act 2003 requires the Department to: 

• facilitate the disclosure of public interest information; 
• provide protection for those who make disclosures; and 
• provide protection for those who are the subject of a disclosure. 

In accordance with the Act, the Department has duly appointed public interest 
disclosure officers and has published internal policies and procedures related to 
its obligations. 

No public interest disclosures were received during 2013–14. 
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Other legal requirements 

Expenditure on advertising, market research, polling and direct mail 
Electoral Act 1907, section 175ZE 

In accordance with s175ZE of the Electoral Act 1907, the agency incurred the 
following expenditure in advertising, market research, polling, direct mail and 
media advertising. 

Total expenditure for 2013–14 was $5,008. 

Expenditure was incurred in the following areas: 

Expenditure Amount  Amount 
Advertising agencies Nil   
Market research organisations Nil   
Polling organisations Nil   
Direct mail organisations $538 Create Send $538 
Media advertising organisations $4,470 Adcorp $4,470 
  Total: $5,008 

The expenditure reported under direct mail organisations relates to distribution of 
the EPA’s newsletter as well as email notification of opportunities for public 
comment and submissions to subscribers. 

Disability access and inclusion plan outcomes 
(Disability Services Act 1993, s29 and Schedule 3 of the Disability Services 
Regulations 2004) 

The OEPA received corporate services from the Department of Parks and 
Wildlife during 2013–14. This included coming under the umbrella of the Parks 
and Wildlife’s Disability Access and Inclusion Plan, which continues an ongoing 
program of improving access, facilities and services to ensure they meet the 
needs of customers and staff. 

The OEPA is committed to developing its own plan during 2014–15 to ensure 
that the specific interests of all OEPA staff and customers are taken into account. 

Compliance with Public Sector Standards and ethical codes 
(Public Sector Management Act 1994, s31(1)) 

The OEPA’s policies are written to support employees in the achievement of a 
professional standard of behaviour and to comply with legislative and public 
sector directives. All policies are accessible to department staff through the 
intranet. In addition, the department undertook the following activities in 2013–14 
to support compliance with public sector standards and ethical codes: 
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• The Department has a published code of conduct linking the WA Code of 
Ethics and OEPA’s Values and Behaviour Guide. 

• A gift decisions form is available on the intranet to complement the conflict of 
interest declaration form and includes the requirement to declare and record 
all gifts offered and accepted. 

• All employees are enrolled in the ‘Accountable and Ethical Decision Making’ 
course on commencement. 

For 2013–14 the OEPA reports the following public sector standards and ethical 
codes compliance statistics: 
 

Compliance issues  Reported for 
2013-14 

Public sector standards in human resource management breach 
claims 

0 

Non-compliance with the WA Code of Ethics and the 
Department’s Code of Conduct  

0 

Substantiated allegations of misconduct under the disciplinary 
provisions of the Public Sector Management Act 1994  

1 

In relation to the substantiated misconduct, the employee was issued a formal 
written notice and an improvement notice and counselling was provided. 

Record keeping plan  
State Records Commission (SRC) Standard 2, Principle 6  

Migration of OEPA records to the new records management system, Alfresco, 
has been successfully implemented. The creation of the new Business 
Classification System (BCS) has met the State Records Commission’s (SRC) 
principles, policies and standards.   

Records management procedures and policies have been developed in 
conjunction with the implementation of Alfresco and have been approved by the 
SRC. 

Record keeping training  

Online records awareness training is currently being developed for OEPA 
employees, as this was previously accessed through the DEC training program. 
The training is being developed to align with OEPA’s systems and procedures as 
well as ensuring that all staff understand the importance of good record keeping 
practice.  
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In conjunction with the online training, step by step video instructions and 
practical training have been developed and made accessible to assist with the 
induction of new employees as well as ongoing training for all staff. 

The record keeping induction booklet is being revised and will be modified to suit 
the OEPA’s needs. With the records awareness training complementing the 
induction process, the OEPA ensures that its induction programme meets the 
compliance requirements of the record keeping plan. Record keeping roles and 
responsibilities are also included in accountability and ethical decision making 
training and the code of conduct. 

Retention and disposal policy 

A retention and disposal policy has been developed and submitted to the State 
Records Office for approval. The OEPA expects the policy to be approved early 
in 2014–15, after which it will be immediately implemented. 

Government policy requirements 

Occupational safety, health and injury management 
(Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2012-05: Code of Practice: Occupational 
Safety and Health in the Western Australian Public Sector) 

The OEPA and its executive are committed to ensuring the safety, health and 
well-being of their employees, contractors, volunteers and visitors at all 
workplaces. 

The department is supported by the Department of Parks and Wildlife in 
providing support for: 

• safety and health communication through the Intranet and other 
communication channels; 

• safety and health training; 
• the operation of the Occupational Safety and Health (OSH) Committee and its 

sub-committees; 
• the activities of the Wellness Program; and 
• continuous improvement of the safety management system including risk 

management processes and hazard/accident/incident reporting. 

The department is developing a range of safety key performance indicators that 
will be reported on and reviewed regularly within an OSH Improvement Plan as 
part of its commitment to the well-being of its staff. 

The OEPA is supported by the Department of Parks and Wildlife, which has a 
workers’ compensation and injury management policy that prescribes the injury 
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management process, including the development of return to work programs for 
all injured staff under the direction and guidance of the OSH team. 

 
Measure  Actual results Results against target 
 2011-12 2013-14 Target Comment on 

result 
Number of fatalities  0 0 0 - 
Lost time injury and/or 
disease incidence rate  

0 0 0  

or 10% 
improvement 

on the 
previous 3 

years  

- 

Lost time injury and/or 
disease severity rate  

0 0 0  

or 10% 
improvement 

on the 
previous 3 

years  

- 

Percentage of injured 
workers returned to 
work:  

   - 

(i) within 13 weeks  
(ii) within 26 weeks  

- 
- 

- 
- 

Greater than 
or equal to 

80% 

- 
- 

Percentage of managers 
trained in occupational 
safety, health and injury 
management 
responsibilities  

0 0 Greater than 
or equal to 

80% 

 

 

 



Home | Contents | Overview | Agency performance | Disclosures and legal compliance | Appendices 

Office of the Environmental Protection Authority Annual Report 2013-2014 106 

 

Appendix 1 Public reports and recommendations to the 
Minister for Environment 

Public Environmental Review (PER) Reports 

Report 
No. 

Title Proponent Release 
date 

1486 Bunbury Port Berth 14A expansion 
and coal storage and loading facility 

Lanco Resources Australia Pty 
Ltd 

17/7/2013 

1487 Resource Recovery Facility, Red Hill Eastern Metropolitan Regional 
Council 

22/7/2013 

1489 Roe Highway Extension Main Roads Western Australia 13/9/2013 
1491 Sorby Hills Silver Lead Zinc Project Sorby Management Pty Ltd 21/10/2013 
1506 Newmont Boddington Gold Mine Life 

Extension 
Newmont Boddington Gold Pty 
Ltd 

2/4/2014 

1513 East Rockingham Waste to Energy 
and Materials Recovery Facility 

New Energy Corporation Pty Ltd 16/6/2014 

1514 North Star Magnetite Project Fortescue Metals Group Iron 
Bridge (Aus) Pty Ltd 

23/6/2014 

1516 Boonanarring Mineral Sands Mine Image Resources NL 23/6/2014 
1518 Keane Road Strategic Link City of Armadale 30/6/2014 

 

Assessment on Proponent Information (API) Reports: Category A 
Report 

No. 
Title Proponent Release 

date 
1485 Mummaloo Iron Ore Project Top Iron Pty Ltd 8/7/2013 
1496 Buckland Project 

 
Iron Ore Holdings Ltd 9/12/2013 

1499 Gorgon Gas Development – 
additional construction laydown and 
operations support area 

Chevron Australia Pty Ltd 6/1/2014 

1501 Orebody 29/30/35 mining below 
watertable 

BHP Billiton Iron Ore Pty Ltd 20/1/2014 

1503 Lumsden Point General Cargo Facility Port Hedland Port Authority 10/2/2014 
1504 Kimberley Aquaculture Development 

Zone 
Minister for Fisheries 17/2/2014 

1505 Hinge Iron Ore Project Karara Mining Ltd 24/3/2014 
1511 Jackson 4 iron ore haul and mine 

road 
Polaris Metals Pty Ltd 4/6/2014 
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Environmental Review (ER) Reports 

Report 
No. 

Title Proponent Release 
date 

1500 Metropolitan Region Scheme 
Amendment 1188/57 – Wellard Urban 
Precinct 

Western Australian Planning 
Commission 

20/1/2014 

 

Changes to Conditions – Section 46 Reports  

Report 
No. 

Title Proponent Release 
date 

1488 Expansion of Jurien Gypsum Mining 
Operation M70/1161, s46 change to 
Environmental Conditions 

CSR Building Products Limited 5/9/2013 

1490 Tronox Chandala Synthetic Rutile 
Plant – s46 amendments to Ministerial 
Statement 412 

Tronox Management Pty Ltd 4/10/2013 

1492 Silica Sand Quarry – s46 
amendments to Ministerial Statement 
024 

Urban Resources Pty Ltd 28/10/2013 

1493 Gold Mine Developments on Lake 
Lefroy – s46 request for amendments 
to Ministerial Statement 548 

St Ives Gold Mining Company 
Pty Ltd 

4/11/2013 

1494 Carina Iron Ore Mine - s46 request for 
amendments to Ministerial Statement 
852 

Polaris Metals Pty Ltd 12/11/2013 

1497 Wastewater Treatment Plant Stage 1 
at Chugg Street, Walpole, Shire of 
Manjimup — inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 493 

Water Corporation 6/1/2014 

1498 Cloudbreak Life of Mine - inquiry 
under s46 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1986 to amend 
Ministerial Statement 899 

Fortescue Metals Group Limited 6/1/2014 

1502 Subdivision of Lot 500 Patterson 
Road, East Rockingham — inquiry 
under s46 of the Environmental 
Protection Act 1986 into whether or 
not the conditions relating to the 
proposal should be changed 

Western Australian Land 
Authority 

3/2/2014 

1507 Southern extension of sandpit, 
Calinup Road, Gelorup, Shire of 
Capel — inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 767 

Cotton Holdings Pty Ltd 2/4/2014 
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Report 
No. 

Title Proponent Release 
date 

1508 West Angelas Iron Ore Project — 
inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 514   

Robe River Mining Co Pty Ltd 14/4/2014 

1509 Port Geographe Development — 
inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 391 

Minister for Transport and 
Tallwood Nominees Pty Ltd 

22/5/2014 

1510 Class II Landfill, Lot 7778 Diagram 
209805, 1189 Wannamal Road 
South, Cullalla, Shire of Gingin — 
inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 796 

Veolia Environmental Services 
(Australia) Pty Ltd 

3/6/2014 

1512 Cooljarloo Mine - Falcon Extension 
proposal – inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 790 

Tronox Management Pty Ltd 16/6/2014 

1515 Roy Hill 1 iron ore project port 
infrastructure proposal – inquiry under 
s46 of the Environmental Protection 
Act 1986 to amend Ministerial 
Statement 858 

Roy Hill Infrastructure Pty Ltd 23/6/2014 

1517 40MW Biomass Power Plant, Forest 
lease No. 1994/97, Shire of Manjimup 
– inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 791 

Western Australia Biomass Pty 
Ltd 

23/6/2014 

1519 Roy Hill Mining Project Stage 1 – 
inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 824 

Roy Hill Iron Ore Pty Ltd 4/7/2014* 

1520 Roy Hill Mining Project Stage 2 – 
inquiry under s46 of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1986 to 
amend Ministerial Statement 829 

Roy Hill Iron Ore Pty Ltd 4/7/2014* 

* EPA Reports 1519 and 1520 were transmitted to the Minister for Environment on 30/6/2014 
 

Noise Regulation 17 Report 

Report 
No. 

Title Proponent Release 
date 

1495 Electrical Distribution Transformers 
Noise Regulation 17 Variation 

Western Power 25/11/13 
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Appendix 2 Section 45C approved changes to proposals 

 
Statement 
No. 

Proposal Title 
Proponent 

Variation Approval 
date 

870 Technical Ammonia Nitrate 
Production Facility, Burrup 
Peninsula 

Yara Pilbara Nitrates Pty Ltd 

Removal of 'Wastewater' from the 
key proposal characteristics table 

9/7/2013 

740 Upgrade Dust Management at 
Finucane Island and Nelson Point, 
Port Hedland 

BHP Billiton Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Various amendments to the 
Environmental Management 
Actions outlined in Schedule 1 

9/7/2013 

894 Residential Subdivision on Lots 
3000 (formerly Lot 1512) and 
1523 Emu Point Drive, Albany 

Western Australian Land Authority 

Increase in clearing of native 
vegetation, change to development 
footprint boundary 

10/7/2013 

867 Brockman 2 Detrital Iron Ore Mine 
Extension Phase 2B 

Hamersley Iron Pty Ltd 

Removal of reference to “Project 
life”, “Total Production”, and 
“Dewatering volume” 

11/9/2013 

391 Port Geographe Stage 1Port 
Geographe Stage 1 

Tallwood Nominees Pty Ltd and 
the Minister for Transport 

Amendment to the channel 
dimensions and excavation works 
in the Key Characteristics Table 

13/9/2013 

854 Hope Downs 4 Iron Ore Mine, 
Shire of East Pilbara 

Hamersley Hope Management 
Services Pty Ltd 

Change to Project Area to expand 
the excess water discharge 
infrastructure corridor 

17/9/2013 

863 Rockingham Industrial Zone 
Strategic Environmental 
Assessment (Formerly IP14) 

LandCorp 

Add 4.36 hectares to the 
Rockingham Industrial Zone 
Strategic Proposal Area 

4/10/2013 

682 Goldsworthy Iron Ore Mines 
extension project 100-170 
kilometres east of Port Hedland 

BHP Billiton Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Revised proposal  description and 
removal of Location, Duration and 
Employment from the key proposal 
characteristics; increase the area 
of disturbance from approximately 
145 to 270 hectares, and formalise 
new Maximum Disturbance 
Boundaries (Development 
Envelope) of approximately of 455 
ha for the site 

9/10/2013 
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Statement 
No. 

Proposal Title 
Proponent 

Variation Approval 
date 

852 Carina Iron Ore Mine, 
approximately 60 kilometres 
north-east of Koolyanobbing, 
Shire of Yilgarn 

Polaris Metals Pty Ltd 

Expansion of existing Carina Pit, 
waste dump 

11/10/2013 

491 Multiple Iron Ore Mine 
Development, Mining Area C - 
Northern Flank, 100km North-
West of Newman 

BHP Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Remove ‘Ore reserves’ and 
‘Project components’; replace ‘Ore 
Production’ with 
‘Extent of Mining’; revise ‘Water 
usage and dewatering 
requirements’ 

18/10/2013 

900 Yilgarn Operations Deception 
Deposit 

Cliffs Asia Pacific Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Realignment of Haul Road, co-
location of support infrastructure to 
Ore Stockpile areas 

5/11/2013 

584 Hope Downs Iron Ore Mine, 75km 
North-West of Newman, Pilbara 
Region 

Hope Downs Management 
Services Pty Ltd 

Annualise Mine Pit Dewatering 
Rate 

7/11/2013 

627 Koolyanobbing Iron Ore 
Expansion Windarling Range and 
Mt Jackson Shire of Yilgarn 

Cliffs Asia Pacific Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Increase to Windarling W4 West 
waste rock dump area and ore 
stockpile area 

20/11/2013 

909 Koolyanobbing Iron Ore 
Expansion Windarling Range and 
Mt Jackson Shire of Yilgarn 

Cliffs Asia Pacific Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Extension to the area of the W4 
East Deposit Haul Road and 
revision of proposal description 

20/11/2013 

862 Solomon Iron Ore Project 

Fortescue Metals Group Pty Ltd 

Up to 5 hectares of disturbance of 
the Priority Ecological Community 
'Brockman Iron Crackling Clay 
Communities of the Hamersley 
Range'; Increase in peak 
dewatering rate to 25 gigalitres per 
annum; and Changes to Schedule 
1 to remove elements not 
environmentally relevant and to 
contemporise this Statement. 

21/11/2013 

847 Roy Hill infrastructure Railway, 
Shire of Ashburton, Shire of East 
Pilbara Town of Port Hedland 

Roy Hill Infrastructure Pty Ltd 

Increase in the area of construction 
disturbance from 6,000 to 7,400 
hectares 

28/11/2013 

147 Port Hedland Salt Operations 

Dampier Salt Limited 

Changes to Table 1, Schedule 1 - 
Key Characteristics Table 

10/12/2013 
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Statement 
No. 

Proposal Title 
Proponent 

Variation Approval 
date 

807 Western Turner Syncline Section 
10 iron ore project, Shire of 
Ashburton 

Hamersley Iron Pty Ltd 

Removal of Water Supply and 
Production Limits 

10/12/2013 

476 Rare Earths Mining and 
Beneficiation At Mt Weld, 
Laverton and Secondary 
Processing at Meenaar, near 
Northam 

Lynas Corporation Ltd 
 

Increase “life of project”; increase 
in the “area of disturbance” from 
approximately <270 hectares (ha) 
to <370 ha (55 ha for Mining 
Campaign 2, and 45 ha for the 
increase in Tailings Dam Area 
footprint from 27.3 to 67.3 ha) and 
Process Water Pond Facility (5 ha); 
remove “size of ore body”; remove 
“maximum carbon dioxide output”; 
and remove “development stages” 

10/12/2013 

679 Marillana Creek (Yandi) Life-of-
Mine Proposal mining leases 
270SA & 47/292, 90 km North-
West of Newman Shire of East 
Pilbara 

BHP Billiton Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Increase to “Mining disturbance 
area”, removal of: ‘Total resources’, 
‘Mining Method’, ‘Overburden 
stripping ratio’, ‘Water use’, ‘Ore 
processing’, ‘Ore transportation 
from site’, ‘Power supply’, and 
‘Workforce’ 

10/12/2013 

852 Carina Iron Ore Mine, 
approximately 60 kilometres 
north-east of Koolyanobbing, 
Shire of Yilgarn 

Polaris Metals Pty Ltd 

Extension of existing Carina Pit, 
Waste dump 

13/12/2013 

905 Magellan Lead Carbonate Project, 
Wiluna 

Rosslyn Hill Mining Pty Ltd 

Replacement of Schedule 1 19/12/2013 

905 Magellan Lead Carbonate Project, 
Wiluna 

Rosslyn Hill Mining Pty Ltd 

Replacement of Schedule 2 19/12/2013 

899 Cloudbreak Life of Mine, Pilbara 

Fortescue Metals Group Limited 

Change to Table 1 in Schedule 1 
for increase in reinjection 
requirements and integration of 
groundwater management between 
Christmas Creek and Cloudbreak 
mines 

20/12/2013 

484 Mineral Sands Mine, Dardanup 

Doral Mineral Sands Pty Ltd 

Inclusion of the Waterloo Project 
into the Southern Extension 

20/12/2013 
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Statement 
No. 

Proposal Title 
Proponent 

Variation Approval 
date 

514 West Angelas Iron Ore Project 
Shires of East Pilbara, Ashburton 
and Roebourne 

Robe River Mining Co Pty Ltd 

Amendment to proposal description 
and deletion of the key 
characteristics from Schedule 1 
which are not relevant to the 
environment or managed by 
another process   

16/1/2014 

690 Pilbara Iron Ore & Infrastructure 
project : port and north-south 
railway (stage A) 

Fortescue Metals Group Limited 

Remove and amend the port 
elements of Schedule 1 to include 
wharf AP5, and removal of 
references to export tonnage in 
Schedule 1 

6/2/2014 

150 Eglinton Beach Resort 

Eglinton Estates Pty Ltd 

Removal of golf course and 
associated recreational resort 
complex and replacement with 
urban development. Increase in 
and change to location of areas to 
be set aside for Conservation 
through Foreshore reserves, 
Regional Open Space and Public 
Open Space 

12/2/2014 

858 Roy Hill Iron Ore Project, Port 
Infrastructure, Port Hedland 

Roy Hill Infrastructure Pty Ltd 

Disposal of dewatered 
groundwater, and addition of a 
pipeline development envelope 

19/2/2014 

786 Extension  Hill Hematite Haulage 
Road & Rail Siding, Shires of 
Perenjori & Yalgoo 

Mount Gibson Mining Limited 

Removal of the General 
Description in Schedule 1, removal 
of the elements that are not key 
characteristics relevant to the 
environment, amendment to the 
element 'Vegetation Clearing' 

10/3/2014 

491 Multiple Iron Ore Mine 
Development, Mining Area C- 
Northern Flank, 100km North-
West of Newman 

BHP Billiton Iron Ore Pty Ltd 

Removal of 'Water usage and 
dewatering requirements' 

24/3/2014 

77 Gidji Gold Roaster-Phase II 
Expansion, near Kalgoorlie Bond 

Kalgoorlie Consolidated Gold 
Mines Pty Ltd 

Add an Ultra Fine Grinding Mill; 
close two concentrate roasters; 
and include the approved 
processing area in the disturbance 
boundary of the operation 

26/3/2014 

879 Gold Mine Developments on Lake 
Lefroy 

Kalgoorlie Consolidated Gold 
Mines Pty Ltd 

Increase of 348 hectares to the 
area of disturbance 

26/3/2014 

723 Coburn Mineral Sand Project, 84 
kilometres south-east of Denham, 
Shire of Shark Bay 
Gunson Resources Limited 

Removal of time restrictions for 
increasing rate of mining and 
processing as well as the 
estimated volume of tailings  

10/4/14 
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Statement 
No. 

Proposal Title 
Proponent 

Variation Approval 
date 

711 Argyle Diamond Mine, 
Underground Project, 11km South 
of Kununurra, Shire of Wyndham-
East Kimberley 

Argyle Diamonds Limited 

Deletion of the “Key 
Characteristics” from Table 1 of 
Schedule 1 of Statement 711 which 
are not relevant to the 
environment; Amendment to daily 
“Dewatering Requirements” limits; 
Removal of reference to 
“Alternative Power Supply”; and 
update all Figures in Schedule 1 

17/4/2014 

572 Ocean Outlet for Treated 
Wastewater, Bunbury Wastewater 
Treatment Plant 

Water Corporation 

Removal of the Total Phosphorous 
(TP) limit of 10 mg/l and the faecal 
coliform limit of <10,000 cfu/ 100ml 

22/4/2014 

105 Port Kennedy Regional 
Recreation Centre – Becher Point, 
Stage 1 (167/843) 

Western Australia Beach and Golf 
Resort Pty Ltd 

Increase in the minimum coastal 
setback, increase in the overall 
extent of the residential 
development area, decrease in the 
overall area of the golf course, 
decrease in groundwater 
abstraction for golf course 
irrigation, and changes to 
development layout and addition of 
roads and public open space 
areas. 

22/4/2014 

359 Change to environmental 
conditions for regional recreation 
centre Stage 1 Boundary, Port 
Kennedy 

Western Australia Beach and Golf 
Resort Pty Ltd 

Increase in the minimum coastal 
setback, increase in the overall 
extent of the residential 
development area, decrease in the 
overall area of the golf course, 
decrease in groundwater 
abstraction for golf course 
irrigation, and changes to 
development layout and addition of 
roads and public open space 
areas. 

22/4/2014 

799 Tutunup South Mineral Sands 
Project 

Iluka Resources Limited 

Amendment to disturbance 
boundary to remove the deviation 
of Vasse Highway and correct 
errors with wetland mapping. 
Reduction in disturbance area by 
1.4 ha and removal of various 
elements not considered 
environmentally relevant or 
managed under other legislation. 

27/5/2014 
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Appendix 3 Other publications 

Environmental Assessment Guidelines (EAGs) 

Scoping a proposal (EAG 10), August 2013 
Recommending environmental conditions (EAG 11), September 2013 

Environmental Protection Bulletins (EPBs) 

EPA involvement in mine closure (EPB 19), July 2013 

Protection of naturally vegetated areas through planning and development (EPB 20), 
December 2013 

Guidance for wind farm developments (EPB 21), February 2014 

 

Office of the Environmental Protection Authority 2012–2013 Annual Report, September 
2013 

Environmental Protection Authority 2012–2013 Annual Report, October 2013 

 
  

http://edit.epa.wa.gov.au/EPADocLib/EAG%2011%20Recommending%20environmental%20conditions%20130913.pdf
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Appendix 4 Acronyms 

AH Act Aboriginal Heritage Act 1972 

API Assessment on Proponent Information level of assessment 

BIF  Banded Iron Formation  

CCW  Conservation Category Wetland 

DAA Department of Aboriginal Affairs 

DMP  Department of Mines and Petroleum 

DoP  Department of Planning 

EAG Environmental Assessment Guideline 

EMP  Environmental Management Plan 

EP Act Environmental Protection Act 1986 

EPA  Environmental Protection Authority 

EPB Environmental Protection Bulletin 

EPBC Act Environment Protection and Biodiversity Conservation Act 1999 

ER Environmental Review level of assessment 

ESD Environmental Scoping Document 

FOI  Freedom of Information, as defined under the Freedom of Information Act 
1992  

GDE groundwater dependent ecosystem 

IBRA Interim Biogeographic Regionalisation for Australia 

KPI Key Performance Indicator 

MRS Metropolitan Region Scheme 

OEPA Office of the Environmental Protection Authority 

PER Public Environmental Review level of assessment 

WAPC Western Australian Planning Commission 

WRD waste rock dump 
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